
AGENDA 
HILLTOWN TOWNSHIP  

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
REGULAR MEETING 

Monday, February 26, 2024

Next Ordinance # 2024-001 
Next Resolution # 2024-010 

Meeting Called to Order: Pledge of Allegiance: 

• JCG  ____ • CEE ____
• CT    ____ • JDW ____
• JAM    ____ • WA  ____
• LEL  ____ • ME   ____

1. Announcements:
a. Executive Session

2. Consent Agenda:

[Items of business and matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and 
non-controversial and will be enacted by one motion and one vote. There will be no separate 
discussion of these items. If discussion is desired by Board Members, that item will be identified and 
removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately at the appropriate place on the 
agenda.] 

a. Minutes of the January 22, 2024, Board of Supervisors Meeting
b. Bills List: February 13, 2024
c. Bills List:  February 27, 2024
d. Financial Report:  January 31, 2024 

As Written: ______ With Corrections: _______ 

JCG:____ CT:____ JAM: ____ 

3. Conditional Use Hearing

a. Conditional Use Appeal 2024-001 Carson Helicopter

4. Confirmed Appointment:

a. Sweatshirt of Hope

b. Zoning Hearing Board Appeal 2023-011 – Garlan Properties, LP: Requesting Variance

5. Legal: Solicitor’s Report:

a. Zoning Hearing Board Appeal 2024-001 – Joe Cuciniello, 204 Pasquale Way: Requesting
Variance

b. Zoning Hearing Board Appeal 2024-002 – RB Ashley Customs, LLC c/o Anne Lorah, 2408
Diamond St.: Seeking Variance



6. Planning: 

a. County Central Mini-Storage Land Development 

b. Carson Helicopters Land Development 

7. Engineering: 

a. None 

8. Unfinished Business: 

a. Discussion regarding Broadcasting of Meeting 

b. Discussion regarding Department Liaison 

c. Discussion of Park and Recreation Committee 

9. New Business: 

a. None 

10. Supervisor’s Comments: 

11. Public Comment: 

12. Press Conference: 

13. Adjournment:        __________Time 



MINTUES from 
January 22, 2024 

BOS MTG.



Pg. 8860 

 

 

HILLTOWN TOWNSHIP BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR MEETING 

MONDAY, JANUARY 22, 2024 

 

The regular meeting of the Hilltown Township Board of Supervisors was called to order by Chairman Caleb 

Torrice at 7:00 PM and opened with the Pledge of Allegiance. Also in attendance were Vice Chairman 

James Groff, Supervisor Joseph Metzinger, Township Manager Lorraine Leslie, Township Solicitor Jack 

Wuerstle, Township Engineer, Timothy Fulmer, Chief of Police Christopher Engelhart and Finance 

Director Marianne Egan.   

 

1. ANNOUNCEMENTS:  Chairman Torrice announced there was an Executive Session on January 

10, 2024, to discuss legal matters. 

 

2. CONSENT AGENDA: 

  

a)  Minutes of the January 2, 2024, Board of Supervisors Reorganization Meeting 

b) Bills List:  January 9, 2024 

c) Bills List:  January 23, 2024 

 

Motion was made by Vice Chairman Groff, seconded by Supervisor Metzinger, and carried unanimously 

to approve items 2(a) through 2(c) on the Consent Agenda.  There was no public comment.   

 

3. CONFIRMED APPOINTMENT:  None. 

 

4. LEGAL:   

 

a) Zoning Hearing Board Appeal 2023-016: Michael & Kerry Tedesco (213 Casey Way)  

Requesting Variance:  Solicitor Wuerstle stated the Tedesco variance application is for the increase of 

impervious surface for a pool.   It was noted that the property is part of a development that is subject to a 

settlement stipulation which sets provisions/limitations for impervious coverage.  Solicitor Wuerstle stated 

he will send correspondence to the Zoning Hearing Board Solicitor prior to the hearing so they are aware 

of the stipulation.   

                          

5. PLANNING:   

 

  a)   Janoski Land Development Waiver: Mr. Fulmer stated the Planning Commission 

recommended approval for the Janoski land development waiver for a 50’ x 40’ agricultural barn located 

on their 10-acre property on Callowhill Road.  Motion was made by Supervisor Metzinger, seconded by 

Vice Chairman Groff, and carried unanimously to approve the Janoski Land Development Waiver 

contingent upon the items contained in the Wynn Associates Inc. review letter dated January 5, 2024.  There 

was no public comment. 

 

6. ENGINEERING:   

 

a) MS4 – Stormwater Management Update:  Mr. Fulmer gave an overview of the status  

of the MS4 Stormwater Management for Hilltown Township stating: 

• Wynn Associates is nearly complete with monitoring of all regulated outfalls within the Township 

to identify possible illicit discharges within the Township owned storm sewer system.   

• Wynn Associates is in the process of preparing design plans to enable completion of various 

stormwater projects to comply with requirements of PADEP for pollution reduction.   



Pg. 8861 
 

Page 2 
Board of Supervisors 
January 22, 2024 
 

• Wynn Associates has prepared a compliance binder for documentation purposes, which contains 
all requirements of the NPDES permit in the event of a PADEP audit.   

• A public works training seminar will be scheduled in the upcoming months to satisfy NPDES 
requirements for MS4 training of Township employees on topics including maintenance of BMPs 
and pollution control/cleanup techniques. 

• An application for renewal of the Township’s NPDES Permit must be completed before October 
2, 2024. 

• Wynn Associates must file the annual MS4 Report with PADEP by the end of September 2024. 
 
Chairman Torrice asked for Public Comment on the MS4 Stormwater Management update as provided by 
Mr. Fulmer.  There was  no public comment. 
 
7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS:   
 

a) 2024 Fee Schedule:  Chairman Torrice stated the fee schedule is under review and is 
tabled until next month. 
 
8. NEW BUSINESS:   
 

a) Discussion regarding Broadcasting of Meeting:  Supervisor Metzinger stated an 
analysis will be started to see about providing the meetings to be live broadcast/streamed, or to be recorded 
and stored out, so the public can access them for increased accessibility and transparency.  He has reached 
out to Pennridge Community Outreach, he will research a variety of other proposals, as well as cost, 
functionality, and budget, in order to provide more information for the next meeting.  Vice Chairman Groff 
stated he will see what everything costs, budgetarily wise, and go from there.  Chairman Torrice stated he 
is excited what Supervisor Metzinger comes up with, and they are heading in the right direction with the 
idea. 
 
9. SUPERVISOR’S COMMENTS:  Vice Chairman Groff stated the Board is investigating ambulance 
services within Hilltown Township as there has been some concern with the way current calls have been 
handled by the first responding ambulance right now, and it will be an agenda item going forward.  
Chairman Torrice stated he is looking to discuss a liaison program for fire, water/sewer, police and public 
works in order to have participation in the departments and increasing understanding of what is happening 
if an issue arises.   Chairman Torrice stated he is also looking to discuss re-instating the Park and Rec Board 
as there are a lot of parks with very little programs, and he knows people who would be good at it. 
 
10. PUBLIC COMMENT:  Wally Rosenthal, 530 Rosie Lane, introduced a 57-acre,  bi-right sketch 
plan, where approximately 18 acres would be dedicated to the commercial front and the rest to be dedicated 
to an active adult community, which will be discussed at a staff meeting at a future date.   
Dale Ott, 246 Mill Road, stated he is glad to hear of the proposed broadcast of the meetings, he asked if the 
agendas could be put on the website two weeks prior to the meetings, and can the Township solicit the state 
to have a “no left turn” sign placed at Route 309 and Church Road. 
 
 
 
 



Pg. 8862 

 

 

Page 3 

Board of Supervisors 

January 22, 2024 

 

11. PRESS CONFERENCE:  None. 

 

12. ADJOURNMENT:  Upon motion by Vice Chairman Groff, seconded by Supervisor Metzinger, 

and carried unanimously, the January 22, 2024, Hilltown Township Board of Supervisors meeting was 

adjourned at 7:31 PM. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Lorraine E. Leslie 

Township Manager 

(*NOTE:  These minutes were transcribed from notes and recordings and should not be considered official 

until approved by the Board of Supervisors at a public meeting).  

 



BILLS LIST



HILLTOWN TOWNSHIP

BILLS LIST SUMMARY

JANUARY 18, 2023 to FEBRUARY 7, 2024

DUE DATE - FEBRUARY 13, 2024

General Fund $ 148,319.89

Fire Fund $ 4,525.10

Park & Recreation Fund $ 2,716.45

Capital Projects Fund $ 3,167.28

Recreation Capital Reserve Fund $ 590.80

Stormwater System Reserve Fund $ 5,992.07

State Highway Aid Fund $ 48,865.08

Escrow Fund $ 28,455.86

Total All Funds $ 242,632.53



GENERAL FUND

AP Invoice Summary Report

02/07/24 09:29:47 AM

Printed By: Supervisor

Page 1 of  5

Invoice # Inv Date PO # Urg Bank # Reference Description Invoice Amt1099Pay TermPost Date

Vendor #: 21ST MEDIA (21st CENTURY MEDIA - PHILLY CLUSTER)

2555402 1 1 2024 MEETING DATES/HOLIDAYS 128.1501/21/24 00 % 0 NET 001/21/24

Total for 21ST MEDIA :  128.1521ST MEDIA: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: ARMOUR (ARMOUR & SONS ELECTRIC, INC.)

910037447 1 1 DIAMOND/ORCHARD  486.7501/26/24 00 % 0 NET 001/26/24

Total for ARMOUR :  486.75ARMOUR: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: ASSOCIATED (Associated Imaging Solutions, Inc.)

491679 1 1 ADMIN/CONTRACT COPIES  116.7102/01/24 00 % 0 NET 002/01/24

Total for ASSOCIATED :  116.71ASSOCIATED: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: BC CONDOY (BUCKS COUNTY CONSORTIUM)

01012424 1 1 2024 MEMBERSHIP DUES  250.0001/01/24 00 % 0 NET 001/01/24

Total for BC CONDOY :  250.00BC CONDOY: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: BCPA (BUCKS COUNTY POLICE ASSOCIATION)

011024 1 1 PD/2024 RANGE MEMBERSHIP DUES 1,000.0001/10/24 00 % 0 NET 001/10/24

Total for BCPA :  1,000.00BCPA: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: BERKHEIMER (H. A. BERKHEIMER, INC.)

142 1 1 EIT  2.7601/31/24 00 % 0 NET 001/31/24

Total for BERKHEIMER :  2.76BERKHEIMER: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: BR SCHOLL (B.R. SCHOLL SALES & SERVICE, INC.)

116677 1 1 PW/#50/INSPECTION  96.0001/25/24 00 % 0 NET 001/25/24

116693 1 1 PW/#51/INSPECTION  86.0001/31/24 00 % 0 NET 001/31/24

Total for BR SCHOLL :  182.00BR SCHOLL: 2 Record(s)

Vendor #: CARDINAL (CARDINAL CAMERA & VIDEO CENTER)

31786 1 1 PD/OLYMPUS BATTERY  42.3901/22/24 00 % 0 NET 001/22/24

Total for CARDINAL :  42.39CARDINAL: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: COM DEP (COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)

1340652 1 1 2024 MS4 INDIVIDUAL PERMIT  2,500.0001/22/24 00 % 0 NET 001/22/24

Total for COM DEP :  2,500.00COM DEP: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: COMCAST (Comcast)

011624 1 1 ADMIN/INTERNET/PHONE LINES 255.0501/16/24 00 % 0 NET 001/16/24

011724 1 1 PD/DIGITAL BOXES  22.4201/17/24 00 % 0 NET 001/17/24

Total for COMCAST :  277.47COMCAST: 2 Record(s)

Vendor #: COTTERINO (COTTERINO SUPPLY & EQUIPMENT CO., INC.)

110714 1 1 PW/PLOW PARTS  476.7501/17/24 00 % 0 NET 001/17/24

Total for COTTERINO :  476.75COTTERINO: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: CRYSTAL (CRYSTAL SPRINGS)

012724 1 1 BOTTLED WATER  599.0101/27/24 00 % 0 NET 001/27/24

Total for CRYSTAL :  599.01CRYSTAL: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: DAVIDHEIS (DAVIDHEISER'S INC.)

28016 1 1 PD/VASCAR TESTING  345.0002/02/24 00 % 0 NET 002/02/24

Total for DAVIDHEIS :  345.00DAVIDHEIS: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: DE LAGE (DE LAGE LANDEN)

81860999 1 1 ADMIN/PD COPIER LEASES  575.1201/20/24 00 % 0 NET 001/20/24

Total for DE LAGE :  575.12DE LAGE: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: DEBBIE'S (DEBBIE'S CLEANING)

12387 1 1 OFFICE CLEANING  1,475.0001/25/24 00 % 0 NET 001/25/24

Total for DEBBIE'S :  1,475.00DEBBIE'S: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: DVHT (DELAWARE VALLEY HEALTH TRUST)

26415 1 1 FEB HEALTH/DENTAL  81,560.3802/01/24 00 % 0 NET 002/01/24

Total for DVHT :  81,560.38DVHT: 1 Record(s)



GENERAL FUND

AP Invoice Summary Report

02/07/24 09:29:47 AM

Printed By: Supervisor

Page 2 of  5

Invoice # Inv Date PO # Urg Bank # Reference Description Invoice Amt1099Pay TermPost Date

Vendor #: EASTERN (EASTERN WAREHOUSE DISTRUBTORS, LLC)

5CN103538 1 1 PW/CORE RETURN -65.0002/05/24 00 % 0 NET 002/05/24

5IV806773 1 1 PW/#45/OIL FILTER  19.4401/24/24 00 % 0 NET 001/24/24

5IV806774 1 1 PW/AIR FILTER  93.9401/24/24 00 % 0 NET 001/24/24

5IV806776 1 1 PW/#45/FUEL FILTERS  37.5501/24/24 00 % 0 NET 001/24/24

5IV808387 1 1 PW/LOW NOTE SCROLL  12.8201/30/24 00 % 0 NET 001/30/24

5IV808853 1 1 PW/CHASE VEHICLE/ALTERNATOR/FILTER 416.6501/31/24 00 % 0 NET 001/31/24

5IV810151 1 1 PW/IGNITION STARTER SWITCH  34.6402/05/24 00 % 0 NET 002/05/24

5IV810781 1 1 PW/OIL FILTER  20.5902/06/24 00 % 0 NET 002/06/24

Total for EASTERN :  570.63EASTERN: 8 Record(s)

Vendor #: ENGELHART (CHRISTOPHER ENGELHART)

012224 1 1 PD/WRAP INSTRUCTOR REGISTRATION 389.0001/22/24 00 % 0 NET 001/22/24

012324 1 1 REIMBURSEMENT/THUMB DRIVES 153.6801/23/24 00 % 0 NET 001/23/24

Total for ENGELHART :  542.68ENGELHART: 2 Record(s)

Vendor #: GALCO (GALCO BUSINESS COMMUNICATIONS, INC.)

90346 1 1 SITE VISIT/REPLACE BATTERY BACK UP 495.0001/29/24 00 % 0 NET 001/29/24

Total for GALCO :  495.00GALCO: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: GOOD (GOOD PLUMBING, HEATING, AIR COND., INC.)

91724959 1 1 HVAC SERVICE/MAINT  645.2601/01/24 00 % 0 NET 001/01/24

Total for GOOD :  645.26GOOD: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: GRIM (GRIM, BIEHN & THATCHER)

221504 1 1 ZHB/2023 HEARINGS LIST  240.5001/22/24 00 % 0 NET 001/22/24

221512 1 1 TEDESCO ZHB  689.3301/22/24 00 % 0 NET 001/22/24

Total for GRIM :  929.83GRIM: 2 Record(s)

Vendor #: GROVE J (JOSHUA GROVE)

012224 1 1 SHOE REIMBURSEMENT  289.9901/22/24 00 % 0 NET 001/22/24

Total for GROVE J :  289.99GROVE J: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: H & K (H & K MATERIALS)

42048 1 1 ROAD MATERIAL/VARIOUS LOCATIONS 312.7601/31/24 00 % 0 NET 001/31/24

Total for H & K :  312.76H & K: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: HOME (HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES)

012824 1 1 BLDG/PD/PW SUPPLIES  259.8201/28/24 00 % 0 NET 001/28/24

Total for HOME :  259.82HOME: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: IT BUSI (IT BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, INC.)

5036 1 1 PD/BODY CAMERA/CAR CAMERA SERVER 403.7501/26/24 00 % 0 NET 001/26/24

5051 1 1 ADMIN MONTHLY MAINT  796.0002/01/24 00 % 0 NET 002/01/24

5052 1 1 PD MONTHLY MAINT  849.0002/01/24 00 % 0 NET 002/01/24

Total for IT BUSI :  2,048.75IT BUSI: 3 Record(s)

Vendor #: KEYSTONE G (KEYSTONE COLLECTIONS GROUP)

0911042292979 1 1 LST  351.0401/31/24 00 % 0 NET 001/31/24

0911042293463 1 1 EIT  2,465.4701/31/24 00 % 0 NET 001/31/24

4611092292993 1 1 LST  10.0001/31/24 00 % 0 NET 001/31/24

Total for KEYSTONE G :  2,826.51KEYSTONE G: 3 Record(s)

Vendor #: LABELCRAFT (LABELCRAFT PRESS, INC.)

24034 1 1 PD/NO PARKING SIGNS  110.0001/17/24 00 % 0 NET 001/17/24

Total for LABELCRAFT :  110.00LABELCRAFT: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: LAPP'S (LAPP'S LANDSCAPE PRODUCTS)

6658 1 1 TOPSOIL/LONGLEAF  180.0002/01/24 00 % 0 NET 002/01/24

Total for LAPP'S :  180.00LAPP'S: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: LAWSON (LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC.)

9311202877 1 1 PW/SUPPLIES  589.4001/09/24 00 % 0 NET 001/09/24

9311245556 1 1 PW/SUPPLIES  427.4301/25/24 00 % 0 NET 001/25/24

Total for LAWSON :  1,016.83LAWSON: 2 Record(s)



GENERAL FUND

AP Invoice Summary Report

02/07/24 09:29:47 AM

Printed By: Supervisor

Page 3 of  5

Invoice # Inv Date PO # Urg Bank # Reference Description Invoice Amt1099Pay TermPost Date

Vendor #: MAGLOCLEN (MAGLOCLEN)

8939 1 1 PD/MEMBERSHIP (TILL 6/30/24)  400.0001/01/24 00 % 0 NET 001/01/24

Total for MAGLOCLEN :  400.00MAGLOCLEN: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: MINUTEMAN (MINUTEMAN PRESS)

65685 1 1 BUILDNG DEPT/LABELS  193.8301/17/24 00 % 0 NET 001/17/24

Total for MINUTEMAN :  193.83MINUTEMAN: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: MOTOROLA (MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS, INC.)

1411061816 1 1 PD/EVIDENCE ANNUAL LICENSE 5,070.0001/28/24 00 % 0 NET 001/28/24

8281808522 1 1 PD/REMOTE TRAINING  1,500.0001/26/24 00 % 0 NET 001/26/24

8281808669 1 1 PD/LICENSE KEY  1,000.0001/29/24 00 % 0 NET 001/29/24

Total for MOTOROLA :  7,570.00MOTOROLA: 3 Record(s)

Vendor #: NYCO (NYCO CORPORATION)

B2400351 1 1 PW/SUPPLIES  107.8501/23/24 00 % 0 NET 001/23/24

Total for NYCO :  107.85NYCO: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: PAONECALL (PENNSYLVANIA ONE CALL SYSTEM, INC.)

1039043 1 1 PA ONE CALLS  85.4501/31/24 00 % 0 NET 001/31/24

Total for PAONECALL :  85.45PAONECALL: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: PATRIOT (PATRIOT WORKWEAR)

39788 1 1 PD/UNIFORMS/GODFREY/MCGUIGAN 282.0001/09/24 00 % 0 NET 001/09/24

39870 1 1 PD/UNIFORMS  126.0001/15/24 00 % 0 NET 001/15/24

Total for PATRIOT :  408.00PATRIOT: 2 Record(s)

Vendor #: PECO (PECO ENERGY COMPANY)

013124 1 1 RT 309  30.0801/30/24 00 % 0 NET 001/30/24

Total for PECO :  30.08PECO: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: POWER DMS (POWER DMS, INC.)

47482 1 1 PD/SUBSCRIPTION/TRAINING  5,774.0401/23/24 00 % 0 NET 001/23/24

Total for POWER DMS :  5,774.04POWER DMS: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: PPL (PPL ELECTRIC UTILITIES)

010924430 1 1 RT 113/SHOPPING MALL  35.2801/09/24 00 % 0 NET 001/09/24

011124025 1 1 OLD BETH PK/CENTRAL AVE  39.0201/11/24 00 % 0 NET 001/11/24

011124272 1 1 RT 113/RT 309  36.2201/11/24 00 % 0 NET 001/11/24

011124524 1 1 RT 113/RT 309  53.3401/11/24 00 % 0 NET 001/11/24

011124580 1 1 OLD RT 309/RT 113  38.4001/11/24 00 % 0 NET 001/11/24

011224439 1 1 DIAMOND/GLENWOOD FLASHER  36.5801/12/24 00 % 0 NET 001/12/24

011824097 1 1 CALLOWHILL RD BLINKER  27.0501/18/24 00 % 0 NET 001/18/24

011824177 1 1 CALLOWHILL RD FLASHER  27.4901/18/24 00 % 0 NET 001/18/24

011824366 1 1 PW BLDG  447.6001/18/24 00 % 0 NET 001/18/24

011824373 1 1 13 W CREAMERY ROAD  1,055.6601/18/24 00 % 0 NET 001/18/24

011824759 1 1 POLE BARN/SALT SHED  158.4301/18/24 00 % 0 NET 001/18/24

011824801 1 1 RT 113/CALLOWHILL  37.7801/18/24 00 % 0 NET 001/18/24

011824926 1 1 RADIO SHELTER  29.3601/18/24 00 % 0 NET 001/18/24

011824947 1 1 GREEN ST/NORTH OF FAIRHILL  32.2601/18/24 00 % 0 NET 001/18/24

012324589 1 1 DIAMOND FLASHING LIGHTS  26.1801/23/24 00 % 0 NET 001/23/24

012324975 1 1 HILLTOWN PK/CALLOWHILL  38.0601/23/24 00 % 0 NET 001/23/24

012524229 1 1 RT 113/DIAMOND  34.2601/25/24 00 % 0 NET 001/25/24

012524435 1 1 RCKERT RD  25.3201/25/24 00 % 0 NET 001/25/24

012524441 1 1 RICKERT ROAD  26.7701/25/24 00 % 0 NET 001/25/24

012624741 1 1 HILLTOWN PK FLASHING  25.8201/26/24 00 % 0 NET 001/26/24

012924564 1 1 HILLTOWN PK/LIMEKILN  39.8701/29/24 00 % 0 NET 001/29/24

013024074 1 1 STREET LIGHTS  3,996.9901/30/24 00 % 0 NET 001/30/24

013024512 1 1 ARBORS LED LIGHTS  189.0501/30/24 00 % 0 NET 001/30/24

021624697 1 1 HILLTOWN PK/SWARTLEY  29.0001/26/24 00 % 0 NET 001/26/24

Total for PPL :  6,485.79PPL: 24 Record(s)



GENERAL FUND

AP Invoice Summary Report

02/07/24 09:29:47 AM

Printed By: Supervisor

Page 4 of  5

Invoice # Inv Date PO # Urg Bank # Reference Description Invoice Amt1099Pay TermPost Date

Vendor #: REESE'S (REESE'S GARAGE, INC.)

62943 1 1 PD/#36-02/LUBE/OIL/FILTER/ROTATION 104.9701/08/24 00 % 0 NET 001/08/24

62991 1 1 PD/#7/LUBE/OIL/FILTER/TIRES MOUNTED 146.6701/12/24 00 % 0 NET 001/12/24

63001 1 1 PD/#36-10/LUBE/OIL/FILTER/ROTATION 90.6901/11/24 00 % 0 NET 001/11/24

63030 1 1 PD/#3/4 TIRES MOUNTED/BALANCED 119.0001/15/24 00 % 0 NET 001/15/24

63050 1 1 PD/#36-08/OIL/CABIN FILTER/ROTATION 500.0101/22/24 00 % 0 NET 001/22/24

63132 1 1 PD/#36-11/LUBE/OIL/FILTER/ROTATION 104.6701/29/24 00 % 0 NET 001/29/24

63154 1 1 PD/#36-09/BATTERY/OIL/FILTER/ROTATI 504.7201/31/24 00 % 0 NET 001/31/24

63176 1 1 PD/#3/LUBE/OIL/FILTER/ROTATION 94.1902/01/24 00 % 0 NET 002/01/24

Total for REESE'S :  1,664.92REESE'S: 8 Record(s)

Vendor #: RICHTER (RICHTER TOTAL OFFICE)

1909580 1 1 ADMIN SUPPLIES  156.6601/09/24 00 % 0 NET 001/09/24

1910241 1 1 PC/NAMEPLATE  16.0001/12/24 00 % 0 NET 001/12/24

1911205 1 1 ADMIN/PD SUPPLIES  121.1801/23/24 00 % 0 NET 001/23/24

19112179 1 1 ADMIN SUPPLIES  179.5701/30/24 00 % 0 NET 001/30/24

1912128 1 1 ADMIN/PD SUPPLIES  43.6701/30/24 00 % 0 NET 001/30/24

Total for RICHTER :  517.08RICHTER: 5 Record(s)

Vendor #: STANDARD (STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY)

011624 1 1 LIFE/DISABILITY  4,236.1801/16/24 00 % 0 NET 001/16/24

Total for STANDARD :  4,236.18STANDARD: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: SUBURBAN (SUBURBAN PROPANE)

609663 1 1 PW/DIESEL FUEL  71.3701/22/24 00 % 0 NET 001/22/24

609727 1 1 PW/DIESEL FUEL  227.4501/29/24 00 % 0 NET 001/29/24

609765 1 1 PW/DIESEL FUEL  168.3902/05/24 00 % 0 NET 002/05/24

Total for SUBURBAN :  467.21SUBURBAN: 3 Record(s)

Vendor #: TRANSUNION (TransUnion Risk and Alternative)

202401 1 1 PD/MONTHLY  90.2002/01/24 00 % 0 NET 002/01/24

Total for TRANSUNION :  90.20TRANSUNION: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: TREEEX (TREE EX)

17450 1 1 STUMP GRINDING/BEECH LANE 1,544.0001/24/24 00 % 0 NET 001/24/24

Total for TREEEX :  1,544.00TREEEX: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: TRIAD (TRIAD TACTICAL, INC.)

0206356 1 1 PW/CUTTING EDGE KIT/SHOE ASSEMBLY 234.0001/19/24 00 % 0 NET 001/19/24

0206482 1 1 PW/CUTTING EDGE KIT (2)  388.0001/26/24 00 % 0 NET 001/26/24

Total for TRIAD :  622.00TRIAD: 2 Record(s)

Vendor #: TRIAD TRUC (TRIAD TRUCK EQUIPMENT, INC.)

0206356 1 1 PW/PLOW PARTS  234.0001/19/24 00 % 0 NET 001/19/24

0206482 1 1 PW/PLOW PARTS  388.0001/26/24 00 % 0 NET 001/26/24

Total for TRIAD TRUC :  622.00TRIAD TRUC: 2 Record(s)

Vendor #: VERIZON (VERIZON WIRELESS)

9953611213 1 1 CELL PHONES  557.5601/30/24 00 % 0 NET 001/30/24

9953641212 1 1 PD/BROADBAND  360.1101/30/24 00 % 0 NET 001/30/24

Total for VERIZON :  917.67VERIZON: 2 Record(s)

Vendor #: VERIZON NY (VERIZON)

010124 1 1 PD/FIOS  99.0001/01/24 00 % 0 NET 001/01/24

Total for VERIZON NY :  99.00VERIZON NY: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: WAST (WM CORPORATE SERVICES, INC.)

345468 1 1 TRASH COLLECTION  1,212.4901/16/24 00 % 0 NET 001/16/24

Total for WAST :  1,212.49WAST: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: WEX BANK (WEX BANK)

94986041 1 1 GASOLINE/DIESEL FUEL  9,592.9101/31/24 00 % 0 NET 001/31/24

Total for WEX BANK :  9,592.91WEX BANK: 1 Record(s)

CHECK VOIDED - WRONG VENDOR SELECTED

megan
Highlight

megan
Highlight

megan
Highlight



GENERAL FUND

AP Invoice Summary Report

02/07/24 09:29:47 AM

Printed By: Supervisor

Page 5 of  5

Invoice # Inv Date PO # Urg Bank # Reference Description Invoice Amt1099Pay TermPost Date

Vendor #: WITMER (WITMER PUBLIC SAFETY GROUP, INC.)

409411 1 1 PD/CONES  29.9001/31/24 00 % 0 NET 001/31/24

Total for WITMER :  29.90WITMER: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: WRIGHT FL (WRIGHT FLOORING)

1223548 1 1 PD/DET OFFICE FLOOR  325.0001/01/24 00 % 0 NET 001/01/24

Total for WRIGHT FL :  325.00WRIGHT FL: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: WYNN ASSOC (WYNN ASSOCIATES, INC.)

012624 1 1 PROFESSIONAL  5,700.7401/26/24 00 % 0 NET 001/26/24

Total for WYNN ASSOC :  5,700.74WYNN ASSOC: 1 Record(s)

Total for this Report :  148,941.89Report: 111 Record(s)

Specific Option(s):

1.) Include Regular Invoices

2.) Include Debit Invoices

3.) Include Prepayment Invoices

C R I T E R I A

Detail Report Sorted by Vendor # + 

Invoice #

Filter(s):

Entry Date: From 02/05/24 Until 02/07/24

REVISED TOTAL FOR THE REPORT:            148,319.89

megan
Highlight



FIRE FUND

AP Invoice Summary Report

02/07/24 08:29:06 AM

Printed By: Supervisor

Page 1 of  1

Invoice # Inv Date PO # Urg Bank # Reference Description Invoice Amt1099Pay TermPost Date

Vendor #: SELLERSVIL (SELLERSVILLE FIRE COMPANY)

020524 1 03 2024 2ND DISTRIBUTION/RE ISSUE 4,525.1002/05/24 00 % 0 NET 002/05/24

Total for SELLERSVIL :  4,525.10SELLERSVIL: 1 Record(s)

Total for this Report :  4,525.10Report: 1 Record(s)

Specific Option(s):

1.) Include Regular Invoices

2.) Include Debit Invoices

3.) Include Prepayment Invoices

C R I T E R I A

Detail Report Sorted by Vendor # + 

Invoice #

Filter(s):

Entry Date: From 02/05/24 Until 02/06/24



PARK & RECREATION FUND

AP Invoice Summary Report

02/07/24 08:29:43 AM

Printed By: Supervisor

Page 1 of  1

Invoice # Inv Date PO # Urg Bank # Reference Description Invoice Amt1099Pay TermPost Date

Vendor #: DISPLAY (DISPLAY AND SIGN CENTER, INC.)

52913 1 05 FOREST ROAD TRAIL SIGNS  305.0001/18/24 00 % 0 NET 001/18/24

Total for DISPLAY :  305.00DISPLAY: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: MUTT MITT (MUTT MITT)

590747 1 05 PARK DOG WASTE BAGS/CAN LINERS 1,739.8201/29/24 00 % 0 NET 001/29/24

Total for MUTT MITT :  1,739.82MUTT MITT: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: PACIFIC (PTS PROVIDERS INC)

1124627 1 05 CIVIC PK/PAY PHONE  99.0001/29/24 00 % 0 NET 001/29/24

1124637 1 05 BLOOMING GL PK/PAY PHONE  99.0001/29/24 00 % 0 NET 001/29/24

Total for PACIFIC :  198.00PACIFIC: 2 Record(s)

Vendor #: PORTABOWL (PORT A BOWL RESTROOM COMPANY)

2674 1 05 BLOOMING GL PK/RESTROOM  121.8001/31/24 00 % 0 NET 001/31/24

2828 1 05 CIVIC PK/REST ROOMS  238.0302/01/24 00 % 0 NET 002/01/24

Total for PORTABOWL :  359.83PORTABOWL: 2 Record(s)

Vendor #: PPL (PPL ELECTRIC UTILITIES)

012324963 1 05 CIVIC PARK  113.8001/23/24 00 % 0 NET 001/23/24

Total for PPL :  113.80PPL: 1 Record(s)

Total for this Report :  2,716.45Report: 7 Record(s)

Specific Option(s):

1.) Include Regular Invoices

2.) Include Debit Invoices

3.) Include Prepayment Invoices

C R I T E R I A

Detail Report Sorted by Vendor # + 

Invoice #

Filter(s):

Entry Date: From 02/05/24 Until 02/06/24



CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

AP Invoice Summary Report

02/07/24 08:30:35 AM

Printed By: Supervisor

Page 1 of  1

Invoice # Inv Date PO # Urg Bank # Reference Description Invoice Amt1099Pay TermPost Date

Vendor #: AXON (AXON ENTERPRISE, INC.)

US217512 1 30 PD/TWO TASERS  3,167.2801/04/24 00 % 0 NET 001/04/24

Total for AXON :  3,167.28AXON: 1 Record(s)

Total for this Report :  3,167.28Report: 1 Record(s)

Specific Option(s):

1.) Include Regular Invoices

2.) Include Debit Invoices

3.) Include Prepayment Invoices

C R I T E R I A

Detail Report Sorted by Vendor # + 

Invoice #

Filter(s):

Entry Date: From 02/05/24 Until 02/06/24



RECREATION CAPITAL RESERVE FUND

AP Invoice Summary Report

02/07/24 08:31:34 AM

Printed By: Supervisor

Page 1 of  1

Invoice # Inv Date PO # Urg Bank # Reference Description Invoice Amt1099Pay TermPost Date

Vendor #: WYNN ASSOC (WYNN ASSOCIATES)

012624 1 31 PROFESSIONAL  590.8001/26/24 00 % 0 NET 001/26/24

Total for WYNN ASSOC :  590.80WYNN ASSOC: 1 Record(s)

Total for this Report :  590.80Report: 1 Record(s)

Specific Option(s):

1.) Include Regular Invoices

2.) Include Debit Invoices

3.) Include Prepayment Invoices

C R I T E R I A

Detail Report Sorted by Vendor # + 

Invoice #

Filter(s):

Entry Date: From 02/05/24 Until 02/06/24



STORMWATER SYSTEM RESERVE FUND

AP Invoice Summary Report

02/07/24 08:32:21 AM

Printed By: Supervisor

Page 1 of  1

Invoice # Inv Date PO # Urg Bank # Reference Description Invoice Amt1099Pay TermPost Date

Vendor #: COMMONWEAH (COMMONWEALTH PRECAST, INC.)

29016A 1 33 PW/SWM SWARTLEY RD  380.0001/01/24 00 % 0 NET 001/01/24

Total for COMMONWEAH :  380.00COMMONWEAH: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: H & K (H & K MATERIALS, iNC.)

41972 1 33 SWM/RELIANCE RD  192.4001/13/24 00 % 0 NET 001/13/24

Total for H & K :  192.40H & K: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: WYNN ASSOC (WYNN ASSOCIATES, INC)

012324 1 33 PROFESSIONAL  5,419.6701/26/24 00 % 0 NET 001/26/24

Total for WYNN ASSOC :  5,419.67WYNN ASSOC: 1 Record(s)

Total for this Report :  5,992.07Report: 3 Record(s)

Specific Option(s):

1.) Include Regular Invoices

2.) Include Debit Invoices

3.) Include Prepayment Invoices

C R I T E R I A

Detail Report Sorted by Vendor # + 

Invoice #

Filter(s):

Entry Date: From 02/05/24 Until 02/06/24



STATE HIGHWAY AID FUND

AP Invoice Summary Report

02/07/24 08:33:54 AM

Printed By: Supervisor

Page 1 of  1

Invoice # Inv Date PO # Urg Bank # Reference Description Invoice Amt1099Pay TermPost Date

Vendor #: SILVI (Silvi Cement)

51031785 1 DE-ICING MATERIAL  1,530.5401/10/24 00 % 0 NET 001/10/24

51032099 1 DE-ICING MATERIAL  18,465.4801/17/24 00 % 0 NET 001/17/24

51032374 1 DE-ICING MATERIAL  4,717.0201/19/24 00 % 0 NET 001/19/24

51032842 1 DE-ICING MATERIAL  21,164.2201/25/24 00 % 0 NET 001/25/24

51032923 1 DE-ICING MATERIAL  2,987.8201/26/24 00 % 0 NET 001/26/24

Total for SILVI :  48,865.08SILVI: 5 Record(s)

Total for this Report :  48,865.08Report: 5 Record(s)

Specific Option(s):

1.) Include Regular Invoices

2.) Include Debit Invoices

3.) Include Prepayment Invoices

C R I T E R I A

Detail Report Sorted by Vendor # + 

Invoice #

Filter(s):

Entry Date: From 02/05/24 Until 02/06/24



ESCROW FUND

AP Invoice Summary Report

02/07/24 08:34:18 AM

Printed By: Supervisor

Page 1 of  1

Invoice # Inv Date PO # Urg Bank # Reference Description Invoice Amt1099Pay TermPost Date

Vendor #: COOPER (COOPER REPORTING)

20 1 APPEARANCE/TRANSCRIPT/CARSON HELICO 367.0001/30/24 00 % 0 NET 001/30/24

Total for COOPER :  367.00COOPER: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: RFI (RFI PROPERTY AND MANAGEMENT, LLC)

020524 1 92 ESCROW RELEASE  19,173.6002/05/24 00 % 0 NET 002/05/24

Total for RFI :  19,173.60RFI: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: SCOTT (MATTHEW SCOTT)

020624 1 92 ESCROW RELEASE  634.9102/06/24 00 % 0 NET 002/06/24

Total for SCOTT :  634.91SCOTT: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: SUPERIOR (SUPERIOR TANK & ENERGY COMPANY LLC)

020624 1 92 ESCROW RELEASE  847.1002/06/24 00 % 0 NET 002/06/24

Total for SUPERIOR :  847.10SUPERIOR: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: TEDESCO (Kerry Tedesco)

020624 1 ESCROW RELEASE  2,500.0002/06/24 00 % 0 NET 002/06/24

Total for TEDESCO :  2,500.00TEDESCO: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: WYNN ASSOC (WYNN ASSOCIATES, INC.)

012624 1 92 PROFESSIONAL  4,933.2501/26/24 00 % 0 NET 001/26/24

Total for WYNN ASSOC :  4,933.25WYNN ASSOC: 1 Record(s)

Total for this Report :  28,455.86Report: 6 Record(s)

Specific Option(s):

1.) Include Regular Invoices

2.) Include Debit Invoices

3.) Include Prepayment Invoices

C R I T E R I A

Detail Report Sorted by Vendor # + 

Invoice #

Filter(s):

Entry Date: From 02/05/24 Until 02/06/24



BILLS LIST



HILLTOWN TOWNSHIP

BILLS LIST SUMMARY

FEBRUARY 8, 2023 to FEBRUARY 21, 2024

DUE DATE - FEBRUARY 27, 2024

General Fund $ 64,909.46

Fire Fund $ 3,553.50

Capital Projects Fund $ 14,257.50

Stormwater System Reserve Fund $ 47.05

State Highway Aid Fund $ 4,500.00

Escrow Fund $ 22,560.26

Total All Funds $ 109,827.77



GENERAL FUND

AP Invoice Summary Report

02/21/24 12:16:09 PM

Printed By: Supervisor

Page 1 of  3

Invoice # Inv Date PO # Urg Bank # Reference Description Invoice Amt1099Pay TermPost Date

Vendor #: AIRGAS (AIRGAS USA, LLC)

9146608684 1 1 PW/WELDING GAS/SHOP SUPPLIES 299.7602/05/24 00 % 0 NET 002/05/24

Total for AIRGAS :  299.76AIRGAS: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: ARMOUR (ARMOUR & SONS ELECTRIC, INC.)

910037733 1 1 RT 309/ORVILLA/STUB POLE INSTALLATI 1,492.7502/06/24 00 % 0 NET 002/06/24

Total for ARMOUR :  1,492.75ARMOUR: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: ASSOCTRUCK (ASSOCIATED TRUCK PARTS)

06P9881 1 1 PW/#40/TORQUE CLAMP  18.9602/14/24 00 % 0 NET 002/14/24

Total for ASSOCTRUCK :  18.96ASSOCTRUCK: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: BARRY ISET (BARRY ISETT & ASSOCIATES INC.)

0185952 1 1 JANUARY PLAN REVIEW/INSPECTIONS 9,171.2502/13/24 00 % 0 NET 002/13/24

0185953 1 1 JANUARY ZONING/PLAN REVIEW 5,100.0002/13/24 00 % 0 NET 002/13/24

Total for BARRY ISET :  14,271.25BARRY ISET: 2 Record(s)

Vendor #: BCATO (BUCKS CO. ASSOC. OF TOWNSHIP OFFICIALS)

022124 1 1 BCATO ANNUAL CONVENTION  45.0002/21/24 00 % 0 NET 002/21/24

Total for BCATO :  45.00BCATO: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: BCATO-2 (BUCKS COUNTY ASSOC OF TOWNSHIP OFFICIALS)

2177 1 1 2024 MEMBERSHIP DUES  300.0001/17/24 00 % 0 NET 001/17/24

Total for BCATO-2 :  300.00BCATO-2: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: BRITTON (BRITTON INDUSTRIES)

1069516 1 1 PW/LONG LEAF BRUSH  30.0002/09/24 00 % 0 NET 002/09/24

Total for BRITTON :  30.00BRITTON: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: CENTRAL B (CENTRAL BUCKS SPECIAL RESPONSE TEAM)

021924 1 1 PD/TACTICAL SUPPLIES  3,200.0002/19/24 00 % 0 NET 002/19/24

Total for CENTRAL B :  3,200.00CENTRAL B: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: COOPER RE (COOPER REPORTING)

22 1 1 ZHB APPERANCE/TRANSCRIPT/FEBRUARY 351.0002/08/24 00 % 0 NET 002/08/24

Total for COOPER RE :  351.00COOPER RE: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: COTTERINO (COTTERINO SUPPLY & EQUIPMENT CO., INC.)

110793 1 1 PW/SNOW PLOW BLADES  3,113.3002/04/24 00 % 0 NET 002/04/24

Total for COTTERINO :  3,113.30COTTERINO: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: DUNLAP (DUNLAP SLK)

111854 1 1 PROGRESS BILLING/2023 AUDIT 8,500.0002/12/24 00 % 0 NET 002/12/24

Total for DUNLAP :  8,500.00DUNLAP: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: EASTERN (EASTERN WAREHOUSE DISTRUBTORS, LLC)

5CN103844 1 1 PW/WINDSHIELD WIPER RETURNS-136.8002/15/24 00 % 0 NET 002/15/24

5IV810997 1 1 PW/#43/AIR/WATER FILTERS/HYDRAULIC 322.5202/07/24 00 % 0 NET 002/07/24

5IV811226 1 1 PW/#43/FUEL FILTER  40.9902/07/24 00 % 0 NET 002/07/24

5IV811227 1 1 PW/#43/OIL FILTER  67.8902/07/24 00 % 0 NET 002/07/24

5IV811842 1 1 PW/#48/OIL FILTER  19.4902/09/24 00 % 0 NET 002/09/24

5IV811845 1 1 PW/#48/CABIN AIR FILTER/COOLANT 85.7802/09/24 00 % 0 NET 002/09/24

5IV811846 1 1 PW/BACKHOE/AIR/OIL/FUEL FILTERS 385.5202/09/24 00 % 0 NET 002/09/24

5IV813482 1 1 PW/#56/WIPER BLADES  68.4002/15/24 00 % 0 NET 002/15/24

5IV813523 1 1 PW/#50/WINDSHIELD WIPERS  17.3402/15/24 00 % 0 NET 002/15/24

5IV813656 1 1 PW/#47/WINDSHIELD WIPERS  70.4002/16/24 00 % 0 NET 002/16/24

5IV815026 1 1 PW/OIL FILTERS  107.1802/21/24 00 % 0 NET 002/21/24

Total for EASTERN :  1,048.71EASTERN: 11 Record(s)

Vendor #: ELAN FIN (Elan Financial Services)

020124 1 1 PSATS/POSTAGE/4TH QTR UNEMP/SUPPLIE 2,547.2402/12/24 00 % 0 NET 002/12/24

Total for ELAN FIN :  2,547.24ELAN FIN: 1 Record(s)



GENERAL FUND

AP Invoice Summary Report

02/21/24 12:16:09 PM

Printed By: Supervisor

Page 2 of  3

Invoice # Inv Date PO # Urg Bank # Reference Description Invoice Amt1099Pay TermPost Date

Vendor #: ENGELHART (CHRISTOPHER ENGELHART)

021924 1 1 PD/STUMPO TRAINING/EVIDENCE ROOM 206.9802/19/24 00 % 0 NET 002/19/24

021924A 1 1 PD/SUPPLIES  142.6402/19/24 00 % 0 NET 002/19/24

Total for ENGELHART :  349.62ENGELHART: 2 Record(s)

Vendor #: GALCO (GALCO BUSINESS COMMUNICATIONS, INC.)

90389 1 1 OFFICE PHONES  610.5602/10/24 00 % 0 NET 002/10/24

Total for GALCO :  610.56GALCO: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: GATEHOUSE (GATEHOUSE MEDIA PA HOLDINGS, LLC)

9680203 1 1 ADVERTISEMENT/ZHB 2023-016  351.2201/31/24 00 % 0 NET 001/31/24

Total for GATEHOUSE :  351.22GATEHOUSE: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: GOOD (GOOD PLUMBING, HEATING, AIR COND., INC.)

924413139 1 1 EMERGENCY SERVICE/NO HEAT  860.9801/31/24 00 % 0 NET 001/31/24

Total for GOOD :  860.98GOOD: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: H & K (H & K MATERIALS)

42109 1 1 PW/MIDDLE ROAD/COLD PATCH  733.4402/10/24 00 % 0 NET 002/10/24

Total for H & K :  733.44H & K: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: HARLEY ACE (HARLEYSVILLE ACE HARDWARE)

907148 1 1 PW/CALCIUM PELLETS  339.9001/18/24 00 % 0 NET 001/18/24

Total for HARLEY ACE :  339.90HARLEY ACE: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: IT BUSI (IT BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, INC.)

5066 1 1 ADMIN/BACKUP DRIVES  180.0002/07/24 00 % 0 NET 002/07/24

5067 1 1 PD/COMPUTER SETUPS  807.5002/15/24 00 % 0 NET 002/15/24

Total for IT BUSI :  987.50IT BUSI: 2 Record(s)

Vendor #: MOYER I/O (MOYER INDOOR/OUTDOOR)

2132078 1 1 TWP BLDG HEATING FUEL  2,833.5402/09/24 00 % 0 NET 002/09/24

2132079 1 1 PW HEATING FUEL  4,157.6702/09/24 00 % 0 NET 002/09/24

Total for MOYER I/O :  6,991.21MOYER I/O: 2 Record(s)

Vendor #: NYCO (NYCO CORPORATION)

B2400752 1 1 PW/CLAMPS/SUPPLIES  66.0002/14/24 00 % 0 NET 002/14/24

Total for NYCO :  66.00NYCO: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: PATRIOT (PATRIOT WORKWEAR)

39925 1 1 PD/2 TRAFFIC VESTS  143.0001/31/24 00 % 0 NET 001/31/24

Total for PATRIOT :  143.00PATRIOT: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: PPL (PPL ELECTRIC UTILITIES)

020224804 1 1 RT 309/ORVILLA RD  58.2202/02/24 00 % 0 NET 002/02/24

020224806 1 1 WALMART/RT 309  55.0302/02/24 00 % 0 NET 002/02/24

020724430 1 1 RT 113/SHOPPING MALL  36.1002/07/24 00 % 0 NET 002/07/24

020924025 1 1 OLD BETH PK/CENTRAL AVE  40.3202/09/24 00 % 0 NET 002/09/24

020924272 1 1 RT 113/RT 309  37.8202/09/24 00 % 0 NET 002/09/24

020924524 1 1 RT 113/RT 309  55.5002/09/24 00 % 0 NET 002/09/24

020924580 1 1 OLD RT 309/RT 113  39.5302/09/24 00 % 0 NET 002/09/24

021224439 1 1 DIAMOND ST/GLENWOOD FLASHER 38.9402/12/24 00 % 0 NET 002/12/24

021524926 1 1 RADIO SHELTER  28.3802/15/24 00 % 0 NET 002/15/24

Total for PPL :  389.84PPL: 9 Record(s)

Vendor #: RICHTER (RICHTER TOTAL OFFICE)

1913548 1 1 ADMIN/PD SUPPLIES  215.4802/09/24 00 % 0 NET 002/09/24

1913996 1 1 ADMIN/SUPPLIES/CARTRIDGES  183.9902/14/24 00 % 0 NET 002/14/24

Total for RICHTER :  399.47RICHTER: 2 Record(s)

Vendor #: STANDARD (STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY)

021324 1 1 LIFE & DISABILITY INSURANCE 4,270.6802/13/24 00 % 0 NET 002/13/24

Total for STANDARD :  4,270.68STANDARD: 1 Record(s)



GENERAL FUND

AP Invoice Summary Report

02/21/24 12:16:09 PM

Printed By: Supervisor

Page 3 of  3

Invoice # Inv Date PO # Urg Bank # Reference Description Invoice Amt1099Pay TermPost Date

Vendor #: STARBRITE (STAR BRITE CAR WASH)

HT37 1 1 JAN PD EHICLE DETAILS  72.0001/01/24 00 % 0 NET 001/01/24

HT38 1 1 FEB PD VEHICLE DETAILS  72.0002/01/24 00 % 0 NET 002/01/24

Total for STARBRITE :  144.00STARBRITE: 2 Record(s)

Vendor #: SUBURBAN (SUBURBAN PROPANE)

609864 1 1 PW/DIESEL FUEL  152.1802/19/24 00 % 0 NET 002/19/24

Total for SUBURBAN :  152.18SUBURBAN: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: TOOL & EQ (TOOL & EQUIPMENT SOLUTIONS)

6616 1 1 PW/LIFT INSPECTION  250.0002/12/24 00 % 0 NET 002/12/24

Total for TOOL & EQ :  250.00TOOL & EQ: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: TREEEX (TREE EX)

17540 1 1 11 E REMOVALS/TWP LINE ROAD 5,880.0002/07/24 00 % 0 NET 002/07/24

Total for TREEEX :  5,880.00TREEEX: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: WAST (WM CORPORATE SERVICES, INC.)

3459358 1 1 TRASH COLLECTION  66.8902/01/24 00 % 0 NET 002/01/24

Total for WAST :  66.89WAST: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: WUERSTLE (JACK D. WUERSTLE)

3457 1 1 JANUARY PROFESSIONAL  6,705.0002/09/24 00 % 0 NET 002/09/24

Total for WUERSTLE :  6,705.00WUERSTLE: 1 Record(s)

Total for this Report :  64,909.46Report: 56 Record(s)

Specific Option(s):

1.) Include Regular Invoices

2.) Include Debit Invoices

3.) Include Prepayment Invoices

C R I T E R I A

Detail Report Sorted by Vendor # + 

Invoice #

Filter(s):

Entry Date: From 02/20/24 Until 02/21/24



FIRE FUND

AP Invoice Summary Report

02/21/24 08:43:31 AM

Printed By: Supervisor

Page 1 of  1

Invoice # Inv Date PO # Urg Bank # Reference Description Invoice Amt1099Pay TermPost Date

Vendor #: NORTH PENN (NORTH PENN WATER AUTHORITY)

10-2023 1 03 2023 HYDRANT RENTAL  3,553.5002/08/24 00 % 0 NET 002/08/24

Total for NORTH PENN :  3,553.50NORTH PENN: 1 Record(s)

Total for this Report :  3,553.50Report: 1 Record(s)

Specific Option(s):

1.) Include Regular Invoices

2.) Include Debit Invoices

3.) Include Prepayment Invoices

C R I T E R I A

Detail Report Sorted by Vendor # + 

Invoice #

Filter(s):

Entry Date: From 02/20/24 Until 02/21/24



CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

AP Invoice Summary Report

02/21/24 08:44:57 AM

Printed By: Supervisor

Page 1 of  1

Invoice # Inv Date PO # Urg Bank # Reference Description Invoice Amt1099Pay TermPost Date

Vendor #: IT BUS SOL (IT BUSINESS SOLUTIONS)

5038 1 30 PD/1 DESKTOP/4 LAPTOP COMPUTERS 7,920.0002/06/24 00 % 0 NET 002/06/24

Total for IT BUS SOL :  7,920.00IT BUS SOL: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: MOTOROLA (MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS INC)

1411061991 1 30 PD/EVIDENCE LIBRARY LICENSES/GRANT 6,337.5001/29/24 00 % 0 NET 001/29/24

Total for MOTOROLA :  6,337.50MOTOROLA: 1 Record(s)

Total for this Report :  14,257.50Report: 2 Record(s)

Specific Option(s):

1.) Include Regular Invoices

2.) Include Debit Invoices

3.) Include Prepayment Invoices

C R I T E R I A

Detail Report Sorted by Vendor # + 

Invoice #

Filter(s):

Entry Date: From 02/20/24 Until 02/21/24



STORMWATER SYSTEM RESERVE FUND

AP Invoice Summary Report

02/21/24 08:46:07 AM

Printed By: Supervisor

Page 1 of  1

Invoice # Inv Date PO # Urg Bank # Reference Description Invoice Amt1099Pay TermPost Date

Vendor #: LANDIS (LANDIS BLOCK AND CONCRETE)

1019048 1 33 PW/STORMWATER SUPPLIES  47.0502/06/24 00 % 0 NET 002/06/24

Total for LANDIS :  47.05LANDIS: 1 Record(s)

Total for this Report :  47.05Report: 1 Record(s)

Specific Option(s):

1.) Include Regular Invoices

2.) Include Debit Invoices

3.) Include Prepayment Invoices

C R I T E R I A

Detail Report Sorted by Vendor # + 

Invoice #

Filter(s):

Entry Date: From 02/20/24 Until 02/21/24



STATE HIGHWAY AID FUND

AP Invoice Summary Report

02/21/24 08:47:46 AM

Printed By: Supervisor

Page 1 of  1

Invoice # Inv Date PO # Urg Bank # Reference Description Invoice Amt1099Pay TermPost Date

Vendor #: ETC (ESTABLISHED TRAFFIC CONTROL)

19845 1 35 PW/SIGN SUPPLIES  580.0002/09/24 00 % 0 NET 002/09/24

Total for ETC :  580.00ETC: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: KEN-JAN (KEN-JAN FARM, INC.)

794 1 35 FEBRUARY SNOW PLOW  1,662.5002/19/24 00 % 0 NET 002/19/24

Total for KEN-JAN :  1,662.50KEN-JAN: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: SCHMIDT (SCHMIDT PAVING, LLC)

2161 1 JAN/FEB SNOW PLOWING  1,750.0002/15/24 00 % 0 NET 002/15/24

Total for SCHMIDT :  1,750.00SCHMIDT: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: T. S. HESS (T. S. HESS & SONS EXCAVATING INC.)

24269 1 35 JANUARY SNOW PLOW  507.5001/31/24 00 % 0 NET 001/31/24

Total for T. S. HESS :  507.50T. S. HESS: 1 Record(s)

Total for this Report :  4,500.00Report: 4 Record(s)

Specific Option(s):

1.) Include Regular Invoices

2.) Include Debit Invoices

3.) Include Prepayment Invoices

C R I T E R I A

Detail Report Sorted by Vendor # + 

Invoice #

Filter(s):

Entry Date: From 02/20/24 Until 02/21/24



ESCROW FUND

AP Invoice Summary Report

02/21/24 08:48:39 AM

Printed By: Supervisor

Page 1 of  1

Invoice # Inv Date PO # Urg Bank # Reference Description Invoice Amt1099Pay TermPost Date

Vendor #: CHESTER (Chester Chrzanowski)

021924 1 92 ESCROW RELEASE #6  19,867.5002/20/24 00 % 0 NET 002/20/24

Total for CHESTER :  19,867.50CHESTER: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: GATEHOUSE (GATEHOUSE MEDIA PENNSYLVANIA HOLDINGS)

9678491 1 ADVERTISEMENT/CARSON HELICOPTERS 380.2601/31/24 00 % 0 NET 001/31/24

Total for GATEHOUSE :  380.26GATEHOUSE: 1 Record(s)

Vendor #: WUERSTLE (JACK D. WUERSTLE)

3457 1 92 JANUARY PROFESSIONAL  2,312.5002/09/24 00 % 0 NET 002/09/24

Total for WUERSTLE :  2,312.50WUERSTLE: 1 Record(s)

Total for this Report :  22,560.26Report: 3 Record(s)

Specific Option(s):

1.) Include Regular Invoices

2.) Include Debit Invoices

3.) Include Prepayment Invoices

C R I T E R I A

Detail Report Sorted by Vendor # + 

Invoice #

Filter(s):

Entry Date: From 02/20/24 Until 02/21/24



CONFIRMED 
APPOINTMENT









From: Lorraine Leslie
To: Theresa Spehar
Subject: FW: Application of Garlan Properties, LP - Appeal 2023-011
Date: Wednesday, January 31, 2024 3:36:52 PM
Attachments: image002.png

Theresa,

Can we put them  on the February 25th agenda.
 

From: Caroline A. Edwards <caedwards@caedwardsesq.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, January 31, 2024 3:35 PM
To: keberle@grimlaw.com
Cc: Lorraine Leslie <lleslie@hilltown.org>; jackw@wuerstlelaw.com; Leah Garlan
(drleahgarlan@gmail.com) <drleahgarlan@gmail.com>; Scott CAMBURN
(scamburn@urwilerwalter.com) <scamburn@urwilerwalter.com>
Subject: Application of Garlan Properties, LP - Appeal 2023-011
 
Kelly –
 
As you know, I represent the applicant, Garlan Properties, LP, in Appeal 2023-011 to the
Hilltown Township Zoning Hearing Board. We are presently scheduled for a hearing on
February 22, 2024.
 
The purpose of this email is to request a continuance due to the fact that we need to meet
with the Board of Supervisors before proceeding to the ZHB, and the February 12 meeting of
the Board of Supervisors has been cancelled.
 
We have requested placement on the next Board of Supervisors’ agenda, on February
26,2024, but do not yet have confirmation that there is room on the agenda. We would
propose to have the Zoning Hearing Board hearing at the next available meeting following our
meeting with the Board of Supervisors.
 
Thanks -
 

Caroline A. Edwards, Esq.  |  Real Estate, Zoning & Land Development Law 
Admitted in PA & NJ | LEED AP
 

9 W. Centre Ave. 
P. O. Box 1586 
Newtown PA 18940

tel. 215.504.8840 
fax  215.504.8844 
email: caedwards@caedwardsesq.com
www.caedwardsesq.com

 

mailto:lleslie@hilltown.org
mailto:tspehar@hilltown.org
http://www.caedwardsesq.com/
mailto:caedwards@caedwardsesq.com
file:////c/www.caedwardsesq.com








 
 

Caroline A. Edwards 
Attorney at Law 

9 West Centre Avenue 
P.O. Box 1586 

Newtown, PA 18940 
Phone 215.504.8840 

Fax 215.504.8844 
 

www.caedwardsesq.com 
caedwards@caedwardsesq.com 

 
Admitted in PA & NJ 

 

       September 18, 2023 
 
SENT VIA EMAIL to keberle@grimlaw.com 
 
Kelly L. Eberle, Esq. 
Grim, Biehn & Thatcher 
104 S. 6th Street 
Perkasie PA 18944 
 
RE: Application of Garlan Properties, LP to the Hilltown Township Zoning Hearing 

Board Tax Parcel Nos. 15-019-040, 15-019-041 and 15-019-042 
Appeal No. 2023-011 

 
Dear Ms. Eberle: 
 

As you know, I represent the Applicant, Garlan Properties, LP, which has an 
application before the Zoning Hearing Board. When we met with the Hilltown 
Township Supervisors to review the application on July 24, 2023, issues were raised 
concerning past matters relating to the property. As a result, we submitted a Right To 
Know Request to Hilltown Township in early August. The Township extended the 
response date to thirty days. I received a copy of the cover letter for the response via 
email on August 31, 2023, and received the documents themselves by mail on 
September 5, 2023.  

 
We are in the process of completing the review of the documents, and discussing 

how they may affect the Zoning Hearing Board application in combination with other 
issues raised by the Supervisors during their review. We will want to meet again with 
the Supervisors to discuss this matter prior to meeting with the Zoning Hearing Board. 
As a result, I would respectfully request that the Board grant a continuance from the 
scheduled September 21, 2023 Zoning Hearing Board hearing.  

 
On behalf of the Applicant, I reiterate the previously-granted extension of time 

for the date of the hearing, and waive all rights to a hearing within sixty (60) days from  
  



9/18/2023 
Page 2 

the date of the filing of the Application as provided under Section 908 of the 
Pennsylvania Municipalities Planning Code, 53 P.S. §10908. 

 
I appreciate the Board’s consideration of this request. 

 

       Sincerely yours, 

        
       Caroline A. Edwards 
 
cc: Lorraine E. Leslie, Hilltown Township Manager (via email) 
 Jack D. Wuerstle, Esq., Hilltown Township Solicitor (via email) 

Garlan Properties, LP (via email) 
Urwiler & Walter, Inc. (via email) 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

1

BEFORE THE ZONING HEARING BOARD 
OF HILLTOWN TOWNSHIP 

In re:

Garlan Properties, LP, for 
1283 Route 113, 1281 Route 
113, and 1279 Route 113, 
Hilltown Township

:
:
:
:
:
:  

Appeal No. 2023-011 

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS

ZONING HEARING

September 21, 2023

7:00 p.m.

Hilltown Township Municipal Building
13 Creamery Road

Hilltown Township, Pennsylvania

BEFORE: THE ZONING HEARING BOARD

DAVID HERSH, Chair
BROOKE RUSH, Member

KELLY L. EBERLE, ESQ., Solicitor 

* * *
COOPER REPORTING

427 East Landis Street
Coopersburg, PA 18036

267-377-7435
stenoscooper@gmail.com



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

2

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

EXHIBIT DESCRIPTION PAGE

B-5 Continuance request 3

B-6 Email from Attorney Christen 
Pionzio entering her appearance

4

B-7 Series of emails regarding 
continuance to February 22, 2024

4



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

3

MR. HERSH:  Good afternoon, or good 

evening, I guess, at this time.  It's about three 

minutes after 7.  

This is the Hilltown Township Zoning 

Hearing Board.  And we're here tonight to discuss -- 

I lost my thing here.  Anyway, we're going to discuss 

a continuance of the Garlan plan that was presented a 

couple months ago.  And I'm going to let our 

solicitor explain exactly what's going on here and 

what we're going to be doing here.  

So I assume all the legal stuff was 

taken care of?  

MS. EBERLE:  Yes.  So this matter was 

originally scheduled for August 3rd, at which time it 

was continued at the Applicant's request until 

tonight's hearing.  At that point in time we entered, 

I believe it was Exhibits B-1 through 4, which 

covered all of the posting and advertising as well as 

Applicant's continuance request.  

So we're going to start off with 

Exhibit B-5 tonight.  And that is an email and a 

letter dated Monday, September 18th, from the 

Applicant's counsel requesting a continuance of 

tonight's hearing and waiving all time requirements 

for the hearing under the MPC.  So this is B-5. 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

4

B-6, we have an email from Christen 

Pionzio entering her appearance on behalf of Sandra 

and Chris Engelhart in this matter.  So a copy of 

that is marked as B-6 for the record. 

And then finally, B-7 is a series of 

emails between the Applicant's attorney, myself, 

Attorney Pionzio, and the township solicitor, 

Attorney Wuerstle, requesting -- with the Applicant 

requesting the continuance until February 22, 2024, 

at 7 p.m.; and the township solicitor and Attorney 

Pionzio indicating that they have no objection to 

said request.  So that is B-7.  

So as you've heard me kind of explain, 

the Applicant has requested a continuance of 

tonight's hearing until February 22, 2024, at 7 p.m.  

And there is no objection from the other parties. 

If the board grants the continuance, 

it will be without further advertising, so there will 

be no more postings or publications.  Just like the 

prior continuance, this is your notice of that 

hearing, should the board grant it. 

MR. HERSH:  Okay.  Thank you.  I will 

at this time ask for a motion to accept the 

continuance. 

MR. RUSH:  I would propose a motion at 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

5

this point to continue the Garlan presentation to 

February 22, 2024, contingent upon that this would be 

the last time a contingency would be granted. 

MR. HERSH:  Okay.  And I will second 

that motion.  And all those in favor say aye. 

(The motion passed unanimously.) 

MR. HERSH:  Opposed?  Obviously nobody 

to oppose it. 

So this Garlan proposal here will be 

back on the agenda on February 22, 2024; and as part 

of the motion, we expect that to be the last 

continuance on this subject. 

MR. RUSH:  Unless they withdraw that. 

MR. HERSH:  Unless they withdraw it 

and come back in again. 

MS. EBERLE:  So that would be at 7 

p.m. on February 22nd in this room. 

MR. RUSH:  And it would not be 

advertised again or posted, but it would be on the 

website for Hilltown. 

MS. EBERLE:  I imagine that they will 

put it on the website on the agendas, but there won't 

be letters or advertisement or anything like that. 

MR. HERSH:  Okay.  I'll look for a 

motion to adjourn. 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

6

MR. RUSH:  I'll make a motion to 

adjourn the meeting. 

MR. HERSH:  I second it.  

Okay.  Thank you very much.  This is a 

short meeting, but those things happen at times.  

Thank you very much.  

(Discussion off the record.) 

(The proceedings concluded at 7:06 

p.m.)

*   *   *



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

7

September 23, 2023  
 

I hereby certify that the evidence and 

proceedings are contained fully and accurately in the 

notes taken by me of the within hearing, and that 

this is a correct transcript of the same. 

             
Shari A. Cooper
Registered Diplomate Reporter
Certified Realtime Reporter
Notary Public























































































































































































SOLICITOR'S 
REPORT







240066







































WV

D

Y

H

G

V

Ex. Dwelling

FF  = 546.3

GF = 544.5

Ex. Electric & Cable Lines

(Per PA-1 Call Markings)

Ex. Transformer

AC

AC

Ex. 2" Effluent Line to

Elevated Sand Mound

(Location Unknown, Must Be

Located By Sonde and Locator)

Ex. 6x6 Frame

Ex. Patio

Ex. Patio

Ex. ESM

WV

Ex. Gutter Drain.

Exact Location of Pipe Runs

Unknown. All Gutters are

Connected to Buried Drains

Ex. Gutter Drain

 Exact Location of

Pipe Runs Unknown

Ex. Pump Tank

Ex. Septic Tank

Ex. Generator

P A S Q U A L E  W A Y

Ex. Liquid Propane Tank

Ex. Electrical &

Telecom Box

PE
R

M
IT

 P
LA

N

1977_Permit Plan.DWG

1"
=2

0' R
C

1

C1.0
Drawing No.

File No.

D
es

ig
ne

d

H
CE

 Jo
b

Sc
al

e

D
at

e

Sh
ee

t  
   

   
   

   
of

   
2

19
77

12
/4

/2
02

3

PR
O

FE
SS

IO
N

AL
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
  P

E0
76

42
4

R
O

BE
R

T 
T.

 C
UN

N
IN

G
H

AM
, P

.E
.

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

D
at

e

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

H
ol

m
es

 C
un

ni
ng

ha
m

 L
LC

40
9 

E.
 B

ut
le

r A
ve

., 
Un

it 
5

D
oy

le
st

ow
n,

 P
A 

18
90

1
(2

15
) 5

86
-3

33
0

w
w

w
.h

ce
ng

in
ee

rin
g.

ne
t

1
-
8
0
0
-
2
4
2
-
1
7
7
6

C
A
L
L
 
B
E
F
O

R
E
 
Y
O

U
 
D

I
G

 
!
!

U
T
I
L
I
T
Y
 

L
O

C
A
T
I
O

N
S
 

A
S
 

S
H

O
W

N
 

O
N

T
H

I
S
 
P
L
A
N

 
A
R
E
 
A
P
P
R
O

X
I
M

A
T
E
 
A
N

D
 
I
T

I
S
 

T
H

E
 

R
E
S
P
O

N
S
I
B
I
L
I
T
Y
 

O
F
 

T
H

E

C
O

N
T
R
A
C
T
O

R
,
 

P
E
R

 
P
A
.
 

A
C
T
 

1
8
7
 

T
O

C
O

N
T
A
C
T
 
U

T
I
L
I
T
Y
 
C
O

M
P
A
N

I
E
S
 
P
R
I
O

R

T
O

 
A
N

Y
 
E
X
C
A
V
A
T
I
O

N
.

P
E
N

N
S
Y
L
V
A
N

I
A
 
L
A
W

 
R
E
Q

U
I
R
E
S

3
 
W

O
R
K
I
N

G
 
D

A
Y
S
 
N

O
T
I
C
E
 
F
O

R

C
O

N
S
T
R
U

C
T
I
O

N
 
P
H

A
S
E
 
A
N

D

1
0
 
W

O
R
K
I
N

G
 
D

A
Y
S
 
I
N

 
D

E
S
I
G

N
 
S
T
A
G

E

-
-
 
S
T
O

P
 
&

 
C
A
L
L
 
-
-

P
e
n
n
s
y
l
v
a
n
i
a
 
O

n
e

C
a
l
l
 
S
y
s
t
e
m

,
 
I
n
c
.

H
IL

LT
O

W
N

 T
O

W
N

SH
IP

, B
UC

KS
 C

O
UN

TY
, P

A
TM

P 
# 

15
-0

22
-1

79
-0

07

O

R
O
B
E
R
T
 
T
H
O
M
A
S
 
C
U
N
N
I
N
G
H
A
M

N

P

E

C

O

M

M

I

V

A

N

S

Y

L

P
E
 
0
7
6
4
2
4

N

A

T

R
E
G
I
S
T
E
R
E
D

W

N

L

E

A

F

O

H

E
N
G
I
N
E
E
R

P
R
O
F
E
S
S
I
O
N
A
L

20
4 

PA
SQ

UA
LE

 W
AY

Feet

0 20 40

LOCATION MAP

LEGEND

SEEPAGE PIT DETAIL

HILLTOWN TOWNSHIP ZONING DATA TABLE

ZONING DISTRICT: RURAL RESIDENTIAL (RR)

ITEM

REQUIRED /

PERMITTED

PROPOSED

Use:

B-1: Single Family

Detached

I-11: Swimming Pool

Min. Lot Area:

50,000 SF 50,544 SF

Min. Lot Width at Setback: 150 FT 188.0 FT

Min. Front Yard Setback: 50 FT 51.9 FT

Min. Side Yard Setback: 25 FT 25.7 FT

Min. Rear Yard Setback: 75 FT

41.5 FT (V)

Max. Impervious Surface per Lot*

15%

20.0% (V)

Max. Building Height:

35 FT < 35 FT

(V) Variance Required

LOT AREA CALCULATIONS

S.F.

Gross Lot Area
50,544

Net Lot Area
50,544

IMPERVIOUS COVERAGE CALCULATIONS

Existing Impervious Coverage

Existing Building 2,732

Existing Driveway 2,606

Existing Front Walkway

300

Existing Rear Patios & Walkways 1,695

Existing Walls

179

Total Existing Impervious 7,513

Existing Impervious Coverage 14.9%

Proposed Impervious Coverage

Existing Building to Remain
2,732

Existing Driveway to Remain
2,606

Existing Front Walkway to Remain

300

Existing Rear Patios & Walkways to Remain

994

Existing Walls to Remain

179

Proposed Pool Deck/ Patio Area 1,855

Proposed Pool & Coping

943

Proposed Structure

352

Proposed Equiptment Pad

32

Proposed Walls

134

Total Proposed Impervious 10,128

Proposed Impervious Coverage

20.0%

Proposed Change in Impervious 2,615

Maximum Allowable Impervious 7,582

SOIL TYPES

Sym

Name

Hydric

(Y/N)

Depth to

Bedrock (in.)

Depth to Water

Table (in.)

HSG

KiC

Klinesville Very Channery Silt Loam, 8 to 15 Percent Slopes

N 10-20 > 80 D

RiB

Reaville Channery Silt Loam, 3 to 8 Percent Slopes

N 20-40 6-36 D

RiC

Reaville Channery Silt Loam, 8 to 15 Percent Slopes

N 20-40 6-36 D



CO
N

ST
R

UC
TI

O
N

 D
ET

AI
LS

1977_Permit Plan.DWG

N
.T

.S
.

R
C

2

C1.1
Drawing No.

File No.

D
es

ig
ne

d

H
CE

 Jo
b

Sc
al

e

D
at

e

Sh
ee

t  
   

   
   

   
of

   
2

19
77

12
/4

/2
02

3

PR
O

FE
SS

IO
N

AL
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
  P

E0
76

42
4

R
O

BE
R

T 
T.

 C
UN

N
IN

G
H

AM
, P

.E
.

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

D
at

e

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

H
ol

m
es

 C
un

ni
ng

ha
m

 L
LC

40
9 

E.
 B

ut
le

r A
ve

., 
Un

it 
5

D
oy

le
st

ow
n,

 P
A 

18
90

1
(2

15
) 5

86
-3

33
0

w
w

w
.h

ce
ng

in
ee

rin
g.

ne
t

1
-
8
0
0
-
2
4
2
-
1
7
7
6

C
A
L
L
 
B
E
F
O

R
E
 
Y
O

U
 
D

I
G

 
!
!

U
T
I
L
I
T
Y
 

L
O

C
A
T
I
O

N
S
 

A
S
 

S
H

O
W

N
 

O
N

T
H

I
S
 
P
L
A
N

 
A
R
E
 
A
P
P
R
O

X
I
M

A
T
E
 
A
N

D
 
I
T

I
S
 

T
H

E
 

R
E
S
P
O

N
S
I
B
I
L
I
T
Y
 

O
F
 

T
H

E

C
O

N
T
R
A
C
T
O

R
,
 

P
E
R

 
P
A
.
 

A
C
T
 

1
8
7
 

T
O

C
O

N
T
A
C
T
 
U

T
I
L
I
T
Y
 
C
O

M
P
A
N

I
E
S
 
P
R
I
O

R

T
O

 
A
N

Y
 
E
X
C
A
V
A
T
I
O

N
.

P
E
N

N
S
Y
L
V
A
N

I
A
 
L
A
W

 
R
E
Q

U
I
R
E
S

3
 
W

O
R
K
I
N

G
 
D

A
Y
S
 
N

O
T
I
C
E
 
F
O

R

C
O

N
S
T
R
U

C
T
I
O

N
 
P
H

A
S
E
 
A
N

D

1
0
 
W

O
R
K
I
N

G
 
D

A
Y
S
 
I
N

 
D

E
S
I
G

N
 
S
T
A
G

E

-
-
 
S
T
O

P
 
&

 
C
A
L
L
 
-
-

P
e
n
n
s
y
l
v
a
n
i
a
 
O

n
e

C
a
l
l
 
S
y
s
t
e
m

,
 
I
n
c
.

H
IL

LT
O

W
N

 T
O

W
N

SH
IP

, B
UC

KS
 C

O
UN

TY
, P

A
TM

P 
# 

15
-0

22
-1

79
-0

07

O

R
O
B
E
R
T
 
T
H
O
M
A
S
 
C
U
N
N
I
N
G
H
A
M

N

P

E

C

O

M

M

I

V

A

N

S

Y

L

P
E
 
0
7
6
4
2
4

N

A

T

R
E
G
I
S
T
E
R
E
D

W

N

L

E

A

F

O

H

E
N
G
I
N
E
E
R

P
R
O
F
E
S
S
I
O
N
A
L

20
4 

PA
SQ

UA
LE

 W
AY

STANDARD CONSTRUCTION DETAIL #4-6

ROCK FILTER OUTLET

STANDARD CONSTRUCTION DETAIL #4-7

STANDARD SILT FENCE (18" HIGH)

TREE PROTECTION FENCING DETAIL

STOCKPILE AREA DETAIL

STANDARD CONSTRUCTION DETAIL #11-1

EROSION CONTROL BLANKET INSTALLATION

STANDARD CONSTRUCTION DETAIL #3-16

PUMPED WATER FILTER BAG

STANDARD CONSTRUCTION DETAIL #3-1

ROCK CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE

STANDARD CONSTRUCTION DETAIL #4-1

COMPOST FILTER SOCK

’

’













































SITE

- STOP -
CALL BEFORE YOU DIG

PENNSYLVANIA ONE CALL SYSTEM, INC.
3 WORKING DAYS NOTICE IS THE LAW!

1-800-242-1776

·

·

·

·

·

POTENTIAL THERMAL IMPACTS ANALYSIS:

ANTICIPATED CONSTRUCTION WASTES:

GEOLOGIC CONDITIONS:

PAST, PRESENT, & PROPOSED LAND USES:

INSPECTION & MAINTENANCE SCHEDULE:

RECEIVING WATERS:

SITE



’

’

Compost Filter Sock

Typical Compost Sock Washout Installation

Rock Filter Outlet Detail

PUMPED WATER FILTER BAG

Rock Construction Entrance



PLANNING 
REPORT



 

WYNN  ASSOCIATES,  INC. 
  

MUNICIPAL ENGINEERING  SERVICES  

( 2 1 5 )  5 3 6 · 7 3 3 6  •  F A X  ( 2 1 5 )  5 3 6 · 5 3 6 1  
2 1 1  W e s t  B r o a d  S t r e e t  •  Q u a k e r t o w n  •  P A  •  1 8 9 5 1  

 

 

g:\municipal\hilltown\03 - file numbers\03-000 general\sups memo\2024\2-26-24 supervisors meeting agenda items.doc 

February 20, 2024 
 
Caleb Torrice, Chairperson (via email) 
Jim Groff, Vice Chairperson (via email)  
Joe Metzinger, Supervisor (via email)    
Hilltown Township Board of Supervisors 
13 W. Creamery Road, PO Box 260 
Hilltown, PA  18927 
 
Subject: February 26, 2024 Board of Supervisors Meeting 
  Planning/Engineering Agenda Items 
  File No. 03-000 
 
Dear Supervisors, 
 
 The following items are included under the Planning portion of your agenda: 
 
 1. County Central Mini-Storage Land Development – At their meeting held on February 19, 2024, the 

Planning Commission recommended final approval of the plan to develop a mini-storage (E20) use on the 
site, conditional upon completion of items contained within engineering review correspondence dated 
February 8, 2024 (copy enclosed), with the following items noted:   

 
• With respect to Comment #2 of engineering review dated February 8, 2024, the applicant offers a 

capital contribution in lieu of street improvements (cartway widening/curb/sidewalk) and planting of 
reforestation trees in the amount of $61,090.83, with the planting of 28 reforestation trees on an 
adjacent parcel also owned by the applicant; or alternately, offers a capital contribution of 
$68,090.83 in lieu of street improvements and planting of reforestation trees, with no planting of 
reforestation trees on the adjoining parcel.  Township should determine whether to accept the capital 
contribution with, or without, planting 28 reforestation trees on the adjoining parcel.  The Planning 
Commission recommends that the Township not require the planting of 28 trees on the adjoining 
parcel, and instead, accept the additional capital contribution offered by the applicant. 

 
• With respect to Comment #6 of engineering review dated February 8, 2024, the applicant’s design 

consultant advises that he has been unable to obtain a review of the plan by the servicing fire 
company (Souderton Station 74) despite several attempts to contact the fire company.   

 
• All other comments contained in engineering review correspondence dated February 8, 2024 from 

this office are “will comply” as stated by the applicant’s design consultant. 
 
 2. Carson Helicopters Land Development – At their meeting held on January 16, 2024, the Planning 

Commission recommended preliminary and final approval of the plan to construct an accessory storage 
building on the site, conditional upon completion of items contained within engineering review 
correspondence dated January 5, 2024 (copy enclosed), with the following items noted: 

 
• An updated waiver request letter, dated November 24, 2023, last revised January 16, 2024 (copy 

enclosed) was received, which memorializes the formal request of waivers outlined in Comment #2 
(A-C) of engineering review dated January 5, 2024, as well as the request to waive street 
improvements as outlined in Comment #3, and maximum slope requirements outlined in Comment 
8.G.  The Planning Commission recommended approval of all waivers contained in the updated 
waiver request letter, subject to the applicant proposing revegetative netting for the steeper sloped 
area as recommended by the engineering review correspondence. 

   
• All other comments contained in engineering review correspondence dated January 5, 2024 are “will 

comply” as stated by the applicant’s consultants.   
 

tspehar
Highlight



 
Hilltown Township Board of Supervisors 
Subject: February 26, 2024 Board of Supervisors Agenda 
February 20, 2023 
Page 2 

 

 
g:\municipal\hilltown\03 - file numbers\03-000 general\sups memo\2024\2-26-24 supervisors meeting agenda items.doc 

• Action on the land development plan should be taken in consideration of the Board’s decision on 
whether to grant Conditional Use approval to the applicant’s request to expand the non-conforming 
use of the site.  If Conditional Use approval is granted, then a condition of land development 
approval should state that the land development plan must comply with all conditions of Conditional 
Use approval.   

 
• Review timeframe provided by the Municipalities Planning Code will expire on March 16, 2024, 

unless a written extension of the review timeframe is offered by the applicant.   
   
 If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 
          Very truly yours, 

           
          Timothy Fulmer, P.E.  
          Township Engineer 
 
TAF 
Enclosure   
cc: Lorraine Leslie, Township Manager (via email) 
 Lisa Faust, Township Administrative Assistant (via email) 
 Marianne Egan, Township Finance Director (via email) 
 Theresa Spehar, Township Administrative Assistant (via email) 
 Jack Wuerstle, Esq. (via email)   



 

WYNN  ASSOCIATES,  INC. 
  

MUNICIPAL ENGINEERING  SERVICES  

( 2 1 5 )  5 3 6 · 7 3 3 6  •  F A X  ( 2 1 5 )  5 3 6 · 5 3 6 1  
2 1 1  W e s t  B r o a d  S t r e e t  •  Q u a k e r t o w n  •  P A  •  1 8 9 5 1  

 

 

g:\municipal\hilltown\01 - file numbers\01-674 707 county line rd ld\docs\2-8-24 - final plan review.docx 

February 8, 2024 
 
David Christ, Jr., Chairman (via email)  
Planning Commission 
Hilltown Township 

P.O. Box 260 
13 W. Creamery Road 
Hilltown, PA  18927 
 

Subject: County Central Mini Storage Land Development Final Plan 

  707 S. County Line Road 

  TMP #15-4-21 

  File No. 01-674 

 

Dear Planning Commission Members, 

 

 The following comments and/or recommendations are made with respect to the subject final land development plan, 

sheets 1 thru 19, dated June 2, 2023, last revised January 15, 2024, prepared by Lenape Valley Engineering, which was 

received by the Township on January 25, 2024; and conditions of preliminary plan approval granted by the Township on 

August 28, 2023: 

 

1. Site layout shown on the final plan is substantially the same as that shown on the preliminary plan, noting that 

the existing driveway north of the dwelling is now shown to be removed (as directed by PennDot), and 

stormwater facility design is revised nearest to County Line Road to eliminate connection to existing storm 

sewer facilities along County Line Road (also directed by PennDot).     

 

2. In consideration of waivers of Sections 140-28.P, 140-29.D, 140-35, and 140-36 (street improvements), and 

Section 140-37.G (replacement trees), the applicant offers a capital contribution in lieu of required 

improvements, based on a cost estimate dated January 18, 2024 prepared by Lenape Valley Engineering.  Two 

offers are proposed:  $61,090.83, which assumes the planting of 28 reforestation trees on an offsite parcel also 

owned by the applicant; or $68,090.83, which does not include installing the 28 reforestation trees offsite.  

Township should determine the appropriate fee-in-lieu of street improvements and reforestation trees, which 

must be deposited by the applicant with the Township, prior to plan recordation.    

 

3. Proposed driveway access must receive approval from PennDot via issuance of a Highway Occupancy Permit, 

prior to plan recordation.  (SLDO Section 140-28.B) 

   

4. A “Post Construction Stormwater Management Report”, dated May 31, 2023, last revised January 18, 2024, 

prepared by Lenape Valley Engineering, was submitted to document compliance with peak rate and volume 

control requirements of the Neshaminy Creek Watershed.  A series of raingardens is proposed, which is 

designed to manage increased runoff from the proposed impervious surfaces associated with the project.   

 

Proposed stormwater management facilities are the responsibility of the property owner to maintain in 

perpetuity.  A Stormwater Facilities Maintenance and Monitoring Agreement, prepared by the Township 

Solicitor, must be executed between the applicant and Township to ensure that the stormwater facilities are 

maintained in accordance with the approved plan; and gives the Township the right, but not the obligation, to 

inspect the site to verify the condition of the stormwater facilities.  (SMO Section 134-42) 

 

Additional comments relative to stormwater management facilities are included in the engineering/drafting detail 

portion of this review.   



 
Hilltown Township Planning Commission (via email) 
Subject: County Central Mini Storage Land Development Final Plan  
February 8, 2024 
Page 2 

 

g:\municipal\hilltown\01 - file numbers\01-674 707 county line rd ld\docs\2-8-24 - final plan review.docx 

 

5. Written verification of approval for design of proposed erosion and sediment control measures to be 

implemented during construction activity must be received from Bucks County Conservation District.  As earth 

disturbance exceeds one acre, verification of receipt of an NPDES Permit must be received from PADEP, prior 

to plan recordation.  (SLDO Section 140-40)   

 

6. General Note 3 on sheet 1 states that the existing uses are serviced by public water and public sewer facilities 

provided by Telford Borough Authority (TBA).  The mini-storage building is not proposed to have water or sewer 

services. Confirmation must be received from TBA that verifies that the site has sufficient water and sewer 

capacity to serve the existing uses (dwelling and commercial/industrial crafts building).   Plan must also be 

reviewed by the servicing fire company (Souderton Station 74) relative to site access and firefighting concerns.  

(SLDO Sections 140-41 and 140-42) 

 

7. Ultimate right of way area of County Line Road within the frontage of the site is offered for dedication to the 

Township by General Note 6 on sheet 1, and will be accepted by the Township as an easement.  A legal 

description for the right of way area was submitted with the final plan for review.  Legal description must be 

signed and sealed by the responsible professional surveyor.  Easement documents prepared by the Township 

Solicitor must be executed by the property owner prior to plan recordation.  (SLDO Section 140-29.B(1)) 

 
8. Right of way monumentation must be installed and certified in writing by the responsible professional land 

surveyor, prior to plan recordation.  (SLDO Section 140-44) 

 
9. Development/Financial Security Agreement must be executed between the applicant and Township to 

guarantee completion of required improvements, including, but not limited to, erosion and sediment control 

measures, stormwater management facilities, landscaping, driveway access, street improvements, lighting, and 

associated improvements.  An Opinion of Cost, was submitted with the final plan, which will be reviewed by this 

office under separate cover.  (SLDO Section 140-55) 

 

10. The following engineering/drafting details must be satisfactorily addressed: 
  

A. General Note 8 on sheet 1 must be revised to identify the correct number of sheets in the plan set (19). 
 

B. Existing Features/Demolition Plan must be revised to clarify the removal of the existing paved driveway 
north of the existing dwelling, for consistency with other plan sheets. 

 
C. Pond Report for the MRC basin contains outlet structure information that varies from that shown on the 

Rain Garden Detail BMP #6 on sheet 9.  Specifically, the outlet pipe length (24 feet vs. 28 feet) and primary 
orifice dimension (13.50 inches wide vs. 10” wide) must be revised for consistency. 

 
D. Pipe entering the side of Inlet A2, as labeled in profile view on sheets 10 and 19, must be identified as 

originating from FES A2b instead of A1. 
 

E. Dimension of the distance between the centerline of County Line Road and the legal right of way, as labeled 
on the “Typical Road Widening” detail on sheet 14, must be clarified, as plan information indicates the 
dimension should be 20 feet instead of 30 feet. 

 
F. “Inlet Report” (second last page of the Stormwater Report) appears to reflect a prior storm sewer design, 

and must be removed in favor of the “Inlet Report” (last page of the Stormwater Report).   
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 Plan should not be approved until the above items are resolved in a manner satisfactory to the Township.  
 
 
 
 



 
Hilltown Township Planning Commission (via email) 
Subject: County Central Mini Storage Land Development Final Plan  
February 8, 2024 
Page 3 

 

g:\municipal\hilltown\01 - file numbers\01-674 707 county line rd ld\docs\2-8-24 - final plan review.docx 

  If you have any questions, do not hesitate to contact me. 
 
          Very Truly Yours,  

           
          Timothy Fulmer, P.E. 
          Township Engineer 
 
TAF 
 
cc: Jon Apple, Vice Chairperson, Planning Commission (via email) 

 Eric Nogami, Secretary, Planning Commission (via email) 

 Robert Sichelstiel, Planning Commission (via email) 

 Dave Bartholomew, Jr., Planning Commission (via email) 

 Caleb Torrice, Chairperson, Board of Supervisors (via email)  

 James Groff, Vice Chairperson, Board of Supervisors (via email) 

 Joe Metzinger, Supervisor, Board of Supervisors (via email)  

 Lorraine Leslie, Township Manager (via email) 

 Marianne Egan, Township Finance Director (via email) 

 Lisa Faust, Township Administrative Assistant (via email) 

 Theresa Spehar, Township Administrative Assistant (via email) 

 Jack Wuerstle, Esq. (via email) 

 County Central, LLC (via email) 

 Lenape Valley Engineering (via email)  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

WYNN  ASSOCIATES,  INC. 
  

MUNICIPAL ENGINEERING  SERVICES  

( 2 1 5 )  5 3 6 · 7 3 3 6  •  F A X  ( 2 1 5 )  5 3 6 · 5 3 6 1  
2 1 1  W e s t  B r o a d  S t r e e t  •  Q u a k e r t o w n  •  P A  •  1 8 9 5 1  

 

 

g:\municipal\hilltown\01 - file numbers\01-165 carson helicopters\docs\2024\1-5-24 - carson helicopters land development plan review.doc 

January 5, 2024 
 
David Christ, Jr., Chairman (via email)  
Planning Commission 
Hilltown Township 

P.O. Box 260 
13 W. Creamery Road 
Hilltown, PA  18927 
 

Subject: Carson Helicopters, Inc. (Phase IV) Land Development  

  952 Blooming Glen Road 

  TMPs #15-28-173 & 174 

  File No. 01-165 

 

Dear Planning Commission Members, 

 

 The following comments and/or recommendations are made with respect to the subject preliminary land 

development plan, sheets 1 thru 9, dated November 24, 2023, prepared by Irick, Eberhardt & Mientus, Inc., which was 

received by the Township on November 27, 2023: 

 

SUBMISSION: 

 

 Two parcels totalling 51.6 acres (net) contain an existing Manufacturing (H1) and Warehousing (G7) use along the 

west side of Blooming Glen Road within the RR Zoning District.  Applicant proposes to construct a 150 feet by 250 feet 

warehouse building within TMP #15-28-173 to supplement the existing use of the site.  Access to the site is provided via 

an existing driveway along Blooming Glen Road.  TMP #15-28-173 (23.4225 acres, net) contains an existing single family 

detached dwelling, office building, paint shop, driveway access, parking, and stormwater management facilities.  TMP 

#15-28-174 (28.1727 acres, net) contains two manufacturing/warehouse buildings and associated parking/access 

driveways.  Site also contains a licensed heliport/private airstrip.  TMP #15-28-174 was subject of a prior minor 

subdivision (approved in 2022), which created a separate lot containing an existing single family detached dwelling.  Site 

is served by on-lot wells and on-lot sewage disposal facilities.     

 

DISCUSSION: 

 

1. Manufacturing/warehousing uses are existing non-conforming uses in the RR Zoning District.  Non-residential 

uses predate zoning, and have been expanded over the years by approval of the Zoning Hearing Board.  

Pursuant to Section 160-62.B of the Zoning Ordinance (as amended by Ordinance 2023-002), certain non-

conforming institutional and industrial uses may be expanded by Conditional Use, subject to additional criteria 

contained in Ordinance 2023-002.  A Conditional Use Application was filed with the Township on December 

11, 2023, which will be reviewed by this office under separate cover.  Conditional Use approval must be 

received prior to, or concurrent with, land development approval.   

 

2. Correspondence dated November 24, 2023 (copy enclosed) was submitted by Irick, Eberhardt & Mientus, Inc. 

on behalf of the applicant, which requests waivers of the following Ordinance sections: 

 

A. SLDO Section 140-17.B(1), incorrectly identified as Section 140-16.B(1) in the waiver request, which 

requires that the plan be drawn at a scale of not more than 50 feet to the inch.  Waiver is requested to 

permit the plan to be drawn at a scale of 1”=80’, to permit the entire site area to be shown on a 

standard sized plan sheet.  Noting that site improvement details are provided on plans drawn at a scale 

of 1”=40’, and information is generally legible, this office has no objection to the applicant’s request. 



 
Hilltown Township Planning Commission (via email) 
Subject: Carson Helicopters, Inc. (Phase IV) Land Development 
January 5, 2024 
Page 2 

 

g:\municipal\hilltown\01 - file numbers\01-165 carson helicopters\docs\2024\1-5-24 - carson helicopters land development plan review.doc 

 

B. SLDO Section 140-38.C(2)(d), which requires a minimum storm sewer pipe diameter of 18 inches.  

Waiver is requested to permit certain storm sewer pipes (conveying runoff between a trench drain and 

an existing storm sewer system) to have a diameter of 10 inches or 12 inches.  As storm sewer is 

privately owned and maintained by the property owner, this office has no objection to the applicant’s 

request.   

 
C. SMO Section 134-20.C, which contains requirements relative to emergency spillway design for a 

stormwater basin. Waiver is requested to permit a reduction in the freeboard dimension from 1 foot to 

0.50 feet, in order to reduce the embankment height and minimize the impact of the basin.  As the basin 

is privately owned and maintained by the property owner, this office has no objection to the applicant’s 

request. 

      

 3. Street improvements, including drainage improvements, cartway widening, curb and sidewalk, should be 

proposed along Blooming Glen Road within the frontage of the site as required by Sections 140-28.P, 140-

29.D(1), 140-35, and 140-36 of the Land Development Ordinance, unless waivers are requested in writing 

and are approved by the Township.  Blooming Glen Road is a state highway in good condition, and no curb or 

sidewalk exists in the vicinity of the site.    

 

 4. A PCSM Narrative, dated November 24, 2023, prepared by Irick, Eberhardt & Mientus, Inc., was submitted, 

which analyses management of stormwater runoff associated with the proposed impervious area expansion 

proposed as part of the current project.  Site is located within the East Branch Perkiomen Creek Watershed, 

which requires compliance with peak rate and volume control requirements of the Township Stormwater 

Management Ordinance.  Proposed building results in the removal of an existing water quality basin BMP, 

which will be replaced by a new stormwater basin designed to mitigate the increased runoff from the 

developed portion of the site.  The following issues pertaining to stormwater management should be 

addressed: 

 

A. Proposed stormwater management facilities are the responsibility of the property owner to maintain in 

perpetuity.  A Stormwater Facilities Maintenance and Monitoring Agreement, prepared by the Township 

Solicitor, should be executed between the applicant and Township to ensure that the stormwater 

facilities are maintained in accordance with the approved plan; and gives the Township the right, but not 

the obligation, to inspect the site to verify the condition of the stormwater facilities.  (SMO Section 134-

42) 

    

B. Additional comments relative to stormwater management facilities are included in the 

engineering/drafting detail portion of this review.   

  

   5. Written verification of approval for design of erosion and sediment control measures to be implemented during 

construction activity should be received from Bucks County Conservation District (BCCD).  As limits of earth 

disturbance will be in excess of 1 acre, an NPDES permit should be obtained by the applicant from PADEP, 

prior to plan recordation.  (SLDO Section 140-40) 

     

 6. Plan notes that project does not involve an increase in employees, and no increase in water usage (that 

would require increased sewage disposal facilities) is expected. Plan should clarify whether the new 

warehouse building will include plumbing fixtures that will require water and/or sewage facilities.  If so, 

confirmation should be received from Bucks County Department of Health that existing on-lot sewage 

disposal facilities are adequate to serve the proposed building.  Plan should also be submitted for review by 

the servicing fire company (Dublin Station 23) relative to site access and firefighting concerns.  (SLDO 

Section 140-41) 

  
 



 
Hilltown Township Planning Commission (via email) 
Subject: Carson Helicopters, Inc. (Phase IV) Land Development 
January 5, 2024 
Page 3 

 

g:\municipal\hilltown\01 - file numbers\01-165 carson helicopters\docs\2024\1-5-24 - carson helicopters land development plan review.doc 

 7. Development/Financial Security Agreement should be executed between the applicant and Township to 

guarantee completion of required improvements, including, but not limited to, erosion and sediment control 

measures, stormwater management facilities, landscaping, and associated improvements.  An Opinion of 

Cost, prepared by a licensed professional engineer, should be submitted to the Township for review.  (SLDO 

Section 140-55) 

 

 8. The following engineering/drafting details should be satisfactorily addressed: 

 

A. Upon issuance of a review memorandum by Bucks County Planning Commission, the BCPC review 

memorandum number should be completed within the County Planning Commission certification on the 

record plan. 
 
B. Existing Features Plan (by shading/legend) should clarify the location of various areas of steep slopes 

for comparison with information contained in the Resource Protection Table on sheet 2. 
 

C. Landscaping table on sheet 3 should include information on the minimum caliper/height of landscaping 

materials at the time of installation, which should be consistent with requirements contained in 

Appendix K of the Land Development Ordinance. 
 

D. Trench Drain Profile on sheet 3 should also include existing grade profile.  Additionally, a profile for the 

proposed basin outlet pipe (from outlet structure to endwall) should be included on the plan for review. 
 
E. Conflicting information between the plan and PCSM report (Pond Report in Appendix A) should be 

clarified, including the length/slope of the basin outlet pipe and elevation/width of the emergency 

spillway.    
 
F. PCSM report should include a calculation for volume control as specified in Section 134-18 of the 

Stormwater Management Ordinance, which may be satisfied by considering the volume of soil 

amendments within the basin area, as well as any non-structural BMP credits applicable to the project.  
  
G. Maximum slope of the proposed embankment around the perimeter of the building area should be 4:1 

for vertical drops in excess of 5 feet.  (SLDO Section 140-39.B)  Additionally, consideration should be 

given to stabilizing the embankment with revegetative netting, to resist erosion until vegetation has fully 

germinated. 
   
H. Five existing parking spaces in the area of the proposed building will remain upon completion of 

building construction, which are located in a manner to potentially obstruct one of the overhead doors of 

the new warehouse.  It is questioned whether parking spaces could be relocated elsewhere to avoid 

conflict with building access.       

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 Plan should not be approved unless the above items are resolved in a manner satisfactory to the Township.    
 

  If you have any questions, do not hesitate to contact me. 
 
          Very Truly Yours,  

           
          Timothy Fulmer, P.E. 
          Township Engineer 
 

TAF 
Enclosure 

 



 
Hilltown Township Planning Commission (via email) 
Subject: Carson Helicopters, Inc. (Phase IV) Land Development 
January 5, 2024 
Page 4 

 

g:\municipal\hilltown\01 - file numbers\01-165 carson helicopters\docs\2024\1-5-24 - carson helicopters land development plan review.doc 

cc: Jon Apple, Vice Chairperson, Planning Commission (via email) 

 Eric Nogami, Secretary, Planning Commission (via email) 

 Robert Sichelstiel, Planning Commission (via email) 

 Dave Bartholomew, Jr., Planning Commission (via email) 

 Caleb Torrice, Chairperson, Board of Supervisors (via email)  

 James Groff, Vice Chairperson, Board of Supervisors (via email) 

 Joe Metzinger, Supervisor, Board of Supervisors (via email)  

 Lorraine Leslie, Township Manager (via email) 

 Marianne Egan, Township Finance Director (via email) 

 Lisa Faust, Township Administrative Assistant (via email) 

 Theresa Spehar, Township Administrative Assistant (via email) 

 Jack Wuerstle, Esq. (via email) 

 Frank Carson (via email)  

 Irick, Eberhardt & Mientus, Inc. (via email) 

 Steve Harris, Esq. (via email) 

  



Suite Three   ● 2771 Geryville Pike  ●   Pennsburg,   PA  18073     ●    215-541-4626    ●  Fax: 215-541-4023 

info@ieandm. com 

 

 

LAND USE CONSULTANTS 

 

Rev.: January 16, 2024 

Rev.: January 15, 2024 

November 24, 2023 

 

Ms. Lorraine Leslie 

Hilltown Township Manager 

13 West Creamery Road 

P.O. Box 260 

Hilltown, PA 18927 

 

 

RE: 21-103 Carson Helicopters Inc. 

 Phase IV-Warehouse Building ‘B’ 

 TMP 15-28-174 

 952 Blooming Glen Road  

 

 

Dear Lorraine, 

 

On behalf of my client, we are hereby requesting the following waivers in support of the Phase IV Land Devel-

opment for Carson Helicopters, Inc:  
 

A. SALDO Section 140-17.B(1), which requires the plan to be drawn at a scale of 1”=50’ or 1”=100’. 

Land Development Plan is drawn at a scale of 1”=80’, to permit the entire site area to be shown on a 

standard sized plan sheet. Information is legible at the 1”=80’ scale. Site improvement details are 

provided on 1”=40’ plans.  

 

B. SALDO Section 134-20.C, Requires any stormwater management facility designed to store runoff 

and requiring a berm or earthen embankment required or regulated by this chapter shall be de-

signed to provide an emergency spillway to handle flow up to and including the 100-year post-devel-

opment conditions. The height of embankment must be set as to provide a minimum of 1.0 foot of 

freeboard above the maximum pool elevation computed when the facility functions for the 100-year 

post-development inflow. A freeboard of 0.50’ is proposed to reduce embankment height and mini-

mize impact of basin.  

 

C. SALDO Section 140-38.C.(2)(d) which requires a minimum pipe size of 18 inches.  Due to grading 

conditions at the proposed building B, a trench drain will be used with 10 or 12” conveyance pipes.  

 

D. SALDO Sections 140-28.P, 140-29.D(1), 140-35, and 140-36, which require cartway reconstruc-

tion/overlay, drainage improvements, cartway widening, curb, and sidewalk along existing roads 

within the frontage of the site.  Blooming Glen road is a state highway, and no development activity 

is being proposed that would have adverse impact on the condition of the road, street improvements 

do not appear necessary. 

 



Suite Three   ● 2771 Geryville Pike  ●   Pennsburg,   PA  18073     ●    215-541-4626    ●  Fax: 215-541-4023 

info@ieandm. com 

E. SALDO Sections 140-39.B, which requires maximum embankment 4:1 slope for vertical drops in

excess of 5 feet. 3:1 slopes are provided around the perimeter embankment of the proposed ware-

house to reduce fill material requirement and extent.  The embankment area will be stabilized with

netting and privately maintained by Carson Helicopter, Inc.

F. SALDO Section 140-11 C.(1)(a) Requires Final Plan submission after preliminary plan approval.

Waiver request to process this application as concurrent preliminary/final Plan. Project is limited in

scope with no increase in employees, parking or traffic.

If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact me. 

Sincerely yours, 

Irick, Eberhardt & Mientus, Inc. 

Estelle T. Eberhardt  
Estelle T. Eberhardt, P.E. 

C: Frank Carson 

Steve Harris 

21-103 twp-waivers-Phase IV 



UNFINISHED 
BUSINESS

a. Discussion on Broadcasting of  Meetings
b. Discussion on Department Liaisons
c. Discussion of Park & Rec. Committee 


	Pages from 08-24-2020 Board Packet-3.pdf
	Binder12.pdf
	Pages from 08-24-2020 Board Packet-2.pdf
	Extracted Title Pages.pdf

	Blank Page
	January 31 2024 Financial Reports.pdf
	GEN FUND JAN BUDGET
	FIRE BUDGET REPORT
	PARK AND REC BUD REPORT
	STREET LIGHT BUD REPORT
	CAPITAL PROJECTS BUD REPORT
	REC CAPITAL BUD REPORT
	OPEN SPACE BUD REPORT
	STORMWATER BUD REPORT
	ROAD EQUIP BUD REPORT
	STATE HIGHWAY BUD REPORT
	OPERATING BUD REPORT

	Blank Page
	February 13 2024 Bills List.pdf
	February 13, 2024 Bills List
	GENERAL FUND AP INVOICE SUMMARY REPORT 2ND
	FIRE FUND AP INVOICE SUMMARY REPORT
	PARK & RECREATION FUND AP INVOICE SUMMARY REPORT
	CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND AP INVOICE SUMMARY REPORT
	RECREATION CAPITAL RESERVE FUND AP INVOICE SUMMARY REPORT
	STORMWATER SYSTEM RESERVE FUND AP INVOICE SUMMARY REPORT
	STATE HIGHWAY AID FUND AP INVOICE SUMMARY REPORT
	ESCROW FUND AP INVOICE SUMMARY REPORT

	ZHB 2024-001 Joe Cuciniello.pdf
	1977_Permit Plans 2023-12-4.pdf
	1977_Permit Plan-C1.0
	Sheets and Views
	C1.0


	1977_Permit Plan-C1.1
	Sheets and Views
	C1.1




	February 27 2024 Bills List.pdf
	February 27, 2024 Bills List
	GENERAL FUND AP INVOICE SUMMARY REPORT
	FIRE FUND AP INVOICE SUMMARY REPORT
	CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND AP INVOICE SUMMARY REPORT
	STORMWATER SYSTEM RESERVE FUND AP INVOICE SUMMARY REPORT
	STATE HIGHWAY AID FUND AP INVOICE SUMMARY REPORT
	ESCROW FUND AP INVOICE SUMMARY REPORT

	February 27 2024 Bills List.pdf
	February 27, 2024 Bills List
	GENERAL FUND AP INVOICE SUMMARY REPORT
	FIRE FUND AP INVOICE SUMMARY REPORT
	CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND AP INVOICE SUMMARY REPORT
	STORMWATER SYSTEM RESERVE FUND AP INVOICE SUMMARY REPORT
	STATE HIGHWAY AID FUND AP INVOICE SUMMARY REPORT
	ESCROW FUND AP INVOICE SUMMARY REPORT




